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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Tata Communications Transformation Services Limited
Repori on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standaione Ing AS financial statements of Tata Communications
Transformation Services Limited (the *Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31
2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

tn our opinion and to the best of our information and according o the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standaione Ind AS financial statements give the information reguired by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (the "Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in india, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, its oss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equxty
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Ack. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone ind 4%
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics' issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
reguirements that are relevant fo our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appreoriate to nrov%de a baszs for our audit opinion on the Standalone Ing AS fmanczat _
statements ' :

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director's and the Management report, but does not include
the Standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Director's and
Management report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

COur opinion on the Standaione Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conciusion thereon

I connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
such other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone ind AS financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears o be materially misstated,
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| R ReSpansibiiEties_of_ Mana_qezﬁérﬁt for ih_e _éfénda;zcgné ;r_éd_ ﬁ;s fénéﬁgiai _sv?;afgmems S

- The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated Insection 134(5) of the Actwith -
respect to the preparation of these Standaione ind AS financial statements that give a trueand fairview ...~ .
of the financial position, financiat performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in -

~ India, including the indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 132 of the Act read i

. with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also =~

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for -~
- safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for .preventing and detecting frauds and other -

irreqularities; selection and application .of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and

completeness of the accounting records, retevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone

o estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of - -
adequate infernal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and

. Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material missiatement,

o whether due fo fraud or error,

In preparing the Standaione Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for asseésing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

concern and using the golng concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to fiquida_te_z o

the Company or to cease c_p_erations, or has no realistic alternative but to de so.

'- fho_se Board of Directors are atso responsible for overseeing the Company's financial fepe_rting_prqce_ss, R .

- Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Stgﬁ_dsﬁ&né Ind AS financial statements

Qur objéz:tév_es are to ohta.%ﬂ reas_onab!e. assurance ébo_aﬁ; ._w.hethef the Standaione ind AS.fi_n_am:_Eéi R

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due te fraud or error, and to issue

an auditor's report that includes our epinion. Reasenable assurance is a high level of assurance, bukis =

not 2 guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material o e
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic . .o

decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Ind AS financia statements. - -

 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exércise profess_ionaijudgmeni and _mai_nta'in profgssiqn'_af_ ol

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resutting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adeguate internal .
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

& Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
o-astimates and refated disclosures made by management. '
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- e - Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting -
. :and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 0L

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability fo confinue as a -

' going concern. If we conclude that a malerial uncertainty exists, we are required o draw ~

. -attention in our auditor's report fo the refated disciosures in the financial statements or, if such

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit .-
- evidence obtained up {o the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions . A

. may cause the Company to cease fo continue as a going co_ncem,

e '-Evé!uate the overall pfesentaféoﬁ, _é.tr_uctur@ and conféﬁt of the _Staﬁéaldae.ind 'A'S'_-ﬁ'h'éh'ciéi

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements

_represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. -

We communicate with those charged with governance regérding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant :_ie_ﬁ_ci_en;igs in L

internal controi that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought fo bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
. -safeguards. : P AL R : R

' Report on Other Legal _an_cl Regafatory Reguirements .

1. _As required by the Compénies.(#luditor‘s Repert) Order, 2016 (the "Order"), issued by _the.Cent?_é:E. . : _' R

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act based on our audit, we -

give in the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. . RR

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

: (a}' We have sdught ahd obtained all the infarmétior&_ and explanations which to the best of our S

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

* () In our opinion, proper books of ac_c'o.ugit. as required by law have E;ée_s_i _képt by the_CQmpén;? s'_o__ B 5

. far as it appears from our examination of those books; -

(¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other

Comprehensive income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt wit__r} -

by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d} In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(fy With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company with reference to these Standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
_ effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2* to this report;
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(9) According to the information and explanation given by the management, we report that
remuneration of the Managing Director for the year ended March 31, 2020 is in excess of the
limits applicable under section 197 of the Act, read with Schedule V thereto, by Rs 358 lakhs.
We are informed by the management that it proposes to obtain approval of the shareholders
in a general meeting by way of a special resolution. B

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
- Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opmlon and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: '

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Standalone Ind AS financial statements -~ Refer Note 34 to the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements;

i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.,

iit. There were noc amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2020.

For S.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Hormuz Master.

Partner

Membership Number: 110797
UDIN: 201 10797TAAAAAWOESRS

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 9, 2020
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- requirements of our Report of even date . ; i
- Re: Tata Communications Transfar_maﬁen Services_ Limited ('the Company’y

O

(b) - All the fixed assets were physically VEriféed by the management during the previous year in S
- --accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years, which, inour .. 21
- opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assefs. . -

)

(i)

(iv)

)

& Annexure 1 referred to in péafég%raph i '.Qn:cfeé'.t_he heading R’epm’t on other iegé_i and rétj_u_iét_aﬁ; e e

(&) The Company has ma_'intaEnéd.prdper_r_éc_erds showing full particulars, including guantitative

 details and situation of fixed assets, -

No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

e} Accdr.d_ing te the i'hformatioh' and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of

immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the a

company.

The Company’s business does not involve inveniories and, accordin
paragraph 3(iD of the Order are nof applicabie to the Company. :

According to the information and explanations givento us, the Company has not granted any loans
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in

the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

 provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable,

b

(viD)

To the bési: .of_ou_r kno_&ﬂedge_and as explained, the Central Govefnment_has né'i specif_'iied_ the ... EAULIEI

gly, the requirements under - '

the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of R

“dn our opinion and according to the informaféon énd explanations given to us, there are no E'aan_s, o e
investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and . SRR
+186 of the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon. .+ A TR

 The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act =

and the Companies (Acceptance of Beposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accarding_&y_,_ the - =i

maintenance of cost reeords_u_nder Section 148(1) of the Act, for ih_es pFOdUctS!_ser}fE(_:_es ;.Qf__.i_‘?}_e_ -

Company.

(a) The Company is reguiar in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty
of custom, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable
foit. :

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, incormne-tax, goods and service tax,

duty of custom, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for.

& period of more than six months from the date they became pavable.
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i{n) A_:_:_éofding_ to the records of the_(:ompa}iy, the du'és: éuiéténa_ing_hf Eﬁcgm:e_t.al_x;"_'a}nd: _Qf?}ég«.. : ;

- {viD

(i

Name ofthe | Natureof | Amount | Period to which ) Forum where -
“Statute - Dues | (RsLakhs) | amount refates | disputes pending -
TheIncometax |IncomeTax | . 267] 200910 . | The Commissioner -
Act, 1961 ST e I PSR .} of Income Tax ...
The Income tax | Income Tax 182.34 -.2016-17 - | The Commissioner .
Act, 1961 . EREE R ' : of Income Tax .~
o {Appeals), Mumbai
Thelncometfax [TDS - 258.39 .2018-19 .| The Commissioner
Act, 1961 BRIV TN B ~oio | of income Tax o
o (Appeals), Mumbai

- statutory dues on account of any dispute, are as follows:

‘There are no dues outstanding with respect to sales tax, service tax, value added tax . -

According to information and explanations, given to us and based on the documents and records
produced to us, the Company had not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financiai in_st_ituti_on_or __

bank. The Company has not issued any debentures.

According to the infor_métion and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money way of inttial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans

hence, reporting under cfaase_(ix) Es.ngt applicable io the Company and hence not c_pm_meatecs: _ N

SPHPEML o

o)

Based upon the aydit pfééedurés_pé_rformed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair _\}iew_:c'f' .
the financial statements and according fo the information and explanations given by the .~ -

management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by _tigé_e}ffgg_e_rs

“and employee_s of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

' (Ixi)_

C(xiD

(xiiiy

{xiv)

According to the information .and explanation given by the management, we report that -

. remuneration of the Managing Director for the year ended March 31, 2020 isinexcessofthelimits " o
“applicable under section 197 of the Act, read with Schedule V thereto, by Rs 358 lakhs. Weare -

- informed by the management that it proposes to obtain approval of the shareholders in a general - -~

meeting by way of a special resolution.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of .
the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, fransactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Act where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as reguired by the applicable
accounting standards.

According to the information and expianations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential aliotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partliy convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
reguirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not

Wered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred

@ section 192 of Act,
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(xw) ﬁscc;ordmg to the mfarmatmn and expiaﬂations given to us, the pmv:s;ens cef secisoa 45 {A of the SR
Resewe Bank of India Act, 1934 are nai‘ applscabie to the Company B

“ForS.R, Batf:bm & Assoc:ates LLP i
- Chartered Accountants | ' a
N F;rm Req:stration Number: 101049Wf5300004

perﬁrmuz Master o

Partner : '
. Membership Number: 110?‘97

- UDIN: 20110797AAAAAWS68S

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 9, 2020
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- " based on the internal controf over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
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- ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STA&DALGNE o
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TATA COMMUNICATIONS TRANSFORMATION SERVICES LIMITED

' Repor& ah the intema! Fmanmai Contmis under C!ause {5} of Sub sect:on 3 m‘ Sectmn 143 of the S ;-'; .
Compan!es Act 2013 (the ‘Ast'} R Sl Sl P

0 We have audited the mtemaf fi nanuai contrcis over f nancxa% repomng of Tata Commumcat:ons S
" Transformation Services Limited (the ‘Company’) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audrt O e
: -of the standa!one fmancaai statements of the Company for the year ended on that date RS

Management’s Responssbiiaty fcz* intemai F‘mancaai Contro!s
The C_ompany s ManagemenE is _res_ponsubfe for esfabi:shmg and maintaining inte#ﬁai finanéf@! c_d'r'xtrofs

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial -
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These -~ ¢
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and

~detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the

: tamely preparatson of reisab ¢ financial mformataan. as ;equ!red under the Acf Lo

Auditor's Responsrbriirtv o

- -Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial -0 -0
~reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Agdit oo
of internat F manc:ai Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note”) and the Standardson .~ '
'Audstmg as speqhed under section 143(10} of the Act, to the exient appzrcabie to an audit of mtemai U
- financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India. These Séaﬁéarés_ -
- and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and performthe -~
- audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial . .
: .re;}czrtmg was. es%ab!sshed and mamtamed and if 5uch contrc s epes’aied effectweiy in ail materiaf R
respects S _ SRIRTEN B

c}ur amﬁt irwelues performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal -
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of

internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internat control based on the

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A

3 pe%tafn to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect

actions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
ns are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
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o possibifity of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements dueto .~

| SREBsUBOISASSOCATESLIP
1 Chertared Accounfans. . e

“with gé_ne'réti_y atcaéﬁ_éd_accéunﬁng f:..riﬂc_ip'le's_, and that receipts and expéh&itﬁfes of the companyare IR

~being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and < RERRHN.

“(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised R R
~ acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a materia effect onthe - oo
financial statements. L SRR

inhe:eﬁthiﬁxitations of Internal Financial Cd_nfmis Ové_r Financiai_ﬁe;ﬁ_@&éqg i
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the -~~~

" errof or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal RS
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal -~ -

financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or -~
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. R TR AT

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were

operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal contral over financial reporting

- criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in _
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the -~

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. s : T AR SR

For S.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants SRR R
M Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

- per Hormuz M ster
Partner .- - 0000 >
“Membership Number: 110797

UDIN: 201 107STAAAAAWSE8S

Place of Signature: Mumbai
- Date: June 9, 2020 '
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Tata Commuitications Transformation Services Limited
Standaiune Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
Particulars : . . : ) g g Hotes 3t March 2070 "Bl March 2016
¥ in Lakhs “Eintakhs
a |aseers " : T
{1} |Nom-current assets : : E - : o FERE
(&} Property, plant and equipment - . : . 5 R 3 : 543483 '4,048.83
by [Capitd work-En-progress e NP : ; : 5117 SRR X
(c} iRight of use Asset EER . ’ : . - . 4 5,247.5% e T
{8} |intangible assets ) ; : 5 234,03 T 147182
e} |Intangible assets under devefopment ; . ’ 21.62 L6840
(f}  iFnancial assets . : SN
(i} Investments ) S e 5A C 13066 CT 31066
{ii} Other financial assets . : . 1 1A B4E.53 LFRAR
(g} |Deferred tax assets {net) : _ . S ) & 3,623.45 T R823.81
{hy  {Income tax assets (net] o : S E] © 13,680.08 ©8,104.02
(i} |Other assets : : : : : ' 104 14809 285.97
Total non-cirrent assets ) o k L : 28,400.04 17,162,868
{2} |Current sssets
fa} |Financial assets
i} bwestzments (Y] - 6,045, 15
tii} Trade receivabtes i1 6803451 5342608
¢t} Cash and cash eguivalents 74 735.48 188246
(iv} Barik balances other than (i} sbove 13 5 -
(v} Gther Bnanciat assets ) bi:} 284.85 215,84
) [ Other assets 108 £,040.13 4,657.90
Total current assets ¥5,120.88 £86,231.43
Total assets 1,602,509 63,394.31
B EGLETY ARD LEABILITIES
I iEguby :
{a) [Equity share capita % S0.00 58,00
b} |Other equity : 1% 33077.67 38,850,567
Total equity . . L i 33,127.62 38,900.67
i |Lishilities . .
(1)  (Non-current abiiies
{fa]  [Finaocial biabifities .
{1} Right of Use Babilities : C 21A 4,287.24% .
(b} Provisions : L ] - 164 232558 L1,2875%
¢} :Other iablities : Co . R I 73 564.58 345,26
Total non-curvent Habilites ; : ) 15542 1642 F7
{2} |Current Kabllities '
fa} Finenclal Lishilites . .
(i} Shiort Term Borrowings 18 4,319.22 s
() Trade and uther payables .
1. Yotal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 184 510,83 . 36882
2. Totat vutstanding dues of creditors other than micro entatprises and small enterprises i9B 4761542 : -35,864.86
(i} Right of Use liakilities : ) : ) Pt 1,166.20 -
{iii) Other financial iabiities i} 398,59 428,26
(b} |Provisions 168 21777 23875
{c}  Other Gabilities 17 IR FAR-¥] 5,941.18
Total current Habiities .. Ba,B55.88 42,841.87
Total equity and Rabilities 1,02,520.82 83,344.21

See sccompanying notes forming part of the standalone fingnciz! statements

For and on behialf of the Board of Divectors

In terms of our Feport attached
For 5.8, Batibof & Assoclates LLP

%&?&W"‘”’EL '

trector

Partrer
tdernbership Number: 110797

Umsree Kotzmraju
Chief Flnancial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Dated: 09 June 2020

Flace : Mumbal
Dated: 09 fune 2020
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Tata Communmatlons Tfansfarmatian Semces Limited .
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 -

" |Particulars

I iRevenue from operations

i {Other income
Itt |Total income (i + 1)

IV [Expenses:

Operating and other expense
Employes benefits expense

Finance costs - '
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Total Expenses

¥ i{Loss}/Profit before exceptional items and tax {iH - IV}
VI [Exceptional gain/(loss) '
¥

(Loss}/Profit hefore tax [V + Vi)

Vit | Tax expense ;
(2} Current tax
{b) Deferred tax

X |{Loss}/Profit for the year (Vil - VIII}

¥ |Other comprehensive income/{loss)

ttems that will not be redlassified to profit or loss
{i} Remeasurements of the defined ber&eft ptans

{ii} Tax on ahove
Oth&r comprehensive income/ {loss} for the year, net of tax

Xl [Total comprehensive income/{loss] for the year, net of tax (X + X}

Basic/Diluted Earnings per share [of ¥ 10 each)

_ Yearemied 2l
Notes| 31March 2020| 31 March 2018|
' ? in L&id’rs D *E‘ in La&hs
133,07207 | 11676214
1,33,07207 | 1,16762.14
22 1,211.73 166407 1 .
1,34,283.80 1,18,426.31 | -
23 '82,202.89 | . 72,043,21
24 43,221,251 : 35,948.67
25 . 504,49 | - -108.50
26 4,422.21 1,675.62
1,40,350.84 1,08,776.00
(6,067.04) 8,650.31
27 (264.99) 199.67
(6,332.03} 8,849.98
-8 493,34 2,876.22
(1,527.81) 280.05
{5,297.56} 5,693.71
{s8g.23); 114.29
(148,05} 39.94
{440.18}| -~ 74.35%
(5,737.74} 5,768.06
30 {1,055.51) ©1,138.74

See accampanying notes formeng part of the standaione fmam:sai statements

In terms of our report attached
For 5.R. Batlibol & Assoclates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Partnier
Membership Number: 110797

Place : Murnbai
Dated: 02 fure 2020
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“Umasree Kotamrajy
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mfumbai
Dated: 09 june 2020



- Tata Communications Transformation Services Limited
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended 31 March 2020
K E ! T T EEERERT i i y“,-gmged ;
" IParticulars o R : : .. 3 March 2020 -31 March 2018
3 I o : ' ' g o ' : ¥ in Lakhs T in Lakhs
. *|cash flows from operating ectivities - . RIS R R
“leioss)/profit before tax TN N L L {5,332.03) g, 845.98
Adjustinents for: A B T SRR S e
Depreciation and amortisation expense _ R _ ) L 4,472.22 - 1,675.62
Finahce costs . : : 504.42 : ~ips.so
1Loss on sale offwrite off assets R : : . {45.10) ©oL {row)
Exchangs fluctustion on foreign exchange : : : §7.39 : d1a38.29
Interest income on financial asset carrled at amortised cost ) {o.02) e
Gain en investments carried at fair value thmugh profit and loss {net} . AR -5 11 : -§247.81}
Atlowance for doubtful advances _ ' s 9,85 . -
Allowance of doubtful trade receivables o _ : 327.67 {5.11}
Operating profit before working cepitaf changes : {1,608.32) 10,567.46
Chunges in working capital ' ' : -
Adjustmient for {incresse} / decease in opefatlng assets:
Trade receivables . {14,936.10} {8,725.48)
Other assets . {38.79) {3,323.31)
Adfustment for Increase / [decrease) In operating iiabilsties, '
Trade and cther payabies . 11,044.49 16,212.38
Provistons 412.62 4,07
Other liabifities ' ' 2,158.65 {1,788.21})
Cash generated from operations {1,463.45) 12,947.11
thcome tax paid {net} [5,069.43) {6,608.76)
Met cash flow generated from opereting activities {6,532.86} 6,337,538
Cash flow from investing sctivities '
Payments for purchase of property, plant & equipment and intangihles {8,565,34) {2,272.93}
Praceeds from disposat of property, plant and equipment and intangibles - - : 2.53
interest received - o 0.02 : -
Purchase of current investment . : {30,200.00) {64,150.00)
Sale of currentinvestment : i 36,232.95 57,478.77
Ket cash used in Investing activites . ' 2,437,653 {5,941.63)
Cash flow from financing ectivities ) R Y
Repayment of current borrowings : ] B {&,188.40} L.
Repayment from curcent berrowings . 42,493.32 (156,04}
Interest paid o ' ' : : {94,561} C {1222
Payment for acquiring right ef use assets ' o {1,122.73) ' .
Tax on Dividend ' o . '
et cash ﬁew g@nemmd used H ﬂnanciﬁg activities : 508758 {168.18)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents : A SR . {1,007.65) l2an56
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year ! 1,882.48 1,687.15
Effect of exchange difference on cash and cash equivalents {73.08} (32.25)
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the vesr B01.73 148246

Ses accompanying notes forming part of the standalons financial statements

I terms of our report attached For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
For 5.R. Betlibol & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

desh Goval
Director

Hormiz Tlaster
Partner
Membership Number; 110797

" Umasree Kotarmraju
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbal
Dated: 09 June 2020

Place : BMumbai
Dated: 09 lune 2020
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Tata Communications Transformatien Services Limited

" 5_i:_andalan_é Statement of changes in eq&ity L

Equity share capital S S
o (¥ in Lakhs)
No. of Shares Amount
Balanoe as at 1 April 2012 - 5,00,000 Y5000
Changes in equity share capital during the vear ~ -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 ' 5,00,000 £0.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balarce as at 31 March 2020 5,00,600 50.00
Other equity o -
‘ o (% in Lakhs)
' Retained Other
Particulars General reserve N comprehensive Total
earnings K
income
Balance as st 1 Aprit 2018 1,381.97 31,493.62 . 21602 33,091.61
Net profit for the year 5,693.71 S 5,653.71
{ther comprehensive income/{loss) for the year 114.29 114.29
Tax impact In other comprehensive income/lloss) for the year {39.94) {39.54)
Total comprehensive income/f{loss] for the year - 560371 74.35 5,768.06
Balance as at 31 March 2019 1,381.97 37,187.33 290.37 38,859.67
Het loss for the year {5.297.586) (5,297.58)
Qther comprehensive income/{loss} for the period {588,23) {568.23)
Tax impact in other comprehensive income/{loss) for the period 148.05 148.05
IND AS 116 Impact {44.31} {44.31)
Total comprehensive income/{loss] for the period - (5,341,867} {446.18) {5,782.05}
Balance as at 31 March 2020

1,381.97 31,845.46 {14981} 33,077.62

See accompanying notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

in terms of our report attached

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates P

Chartered Accountants )

ICALFirm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Hormui i _sfe/% :
Pattner

fMembership Number: 110797

Place : Mumbai
Dated: 0% June 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Aadesh Goyal TR A N B
Birector C

Usr n’eaiu
Chief Firancial Officer

Place : Murabai
Dated: 03 June 2020
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ot

Netes formmg part of the standaio:&_e f“ nancrai statements

for the year ended 31 March 2{?20

1, Corpsrate !nformatien

s TATA Commumcations T:ansformatian Sewice& Litmfed (the ‘Company’ ) was mwrporated on 6 October 2006

‘to engage in the business of providing telecommunication network management and support serwces and iBa .

thEly owned suhsz&;ary uf Tata ﬁammunica&mns Lmﬂted {Holdmg Company) 3 U R

" “fhe Csmpany is domiciled in. lndia ami its registered office is at C-21/ C 36, G Biock, Bandra Kurla Complex - ; :
Mumbal 400098 Maharashtra The Cempany also has branches in United ngdom and Saudi Arabta SR

2. Signiﬁcant Aecounting Pot!cies

3

Sta temem* of mmﬁfiance

These financiat statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standarés (iﬂd AS}
notifled under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standar&s} Rules, 2015, )

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on a historieal cost basis, except for the foiiuwmg assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount: : :

i. Derivative financial instruments
il. Certain Binancial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer note 2{g}}

The accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of financial statements have been

consistently applied except for the changes in accounting policy on introduction of ind AS 116 that was - o

effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2019 {refer note Z{r}}.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (iNR}F and afl vaiues are reunded to the nearest -

fakh {ENR ot 0{}9} except when otherw&se mdxcated

ngmiﬁs_anf accounting, estima tes'tmd assumptions .

The preparation of the Company's financial staternents requires management to make, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and lisbilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions

Estémates ami assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the cartying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters svailable when the standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes
or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such
obiigations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valustion invelves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, fulure salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities invelved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes m thszse
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. - AR oy

Page 15 of 537

. and estimates could result | in outcomes that requ:re a matenal adgustment to the c&rrymg amoum: of assets - L
Cor Isabn}sties affectezi i future peﬂeds : : : : EE



TATA Communfcat;cms Transformatson Semces letted

Notes f&rm:ng part of the st&nda!one f‘ nancsai statements
for the year ended 31 Mcm:h 2(’320

. Usefui ﬁfe of assety

- The Company revuem the usefui life of assets at the end ef each repérttng period. Thss reassessment may
- resultin change in deprematmn expense in future periods.

: Pm_visions and contingent fiabilties .

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events, it s

- probabie that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. If the effect of the time value of mehey is material, provisions are discounted using

- & current pre-tax rate that ref%ee:ts, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When dsscountmg s
used thei increase inthe pmwston dueto tha passage of ttme is recogmsed asa f inance cost : :

~ Contingent Eiabilities are disclosed when there s a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the contrel of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events
where it is either not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate
of the amount cannct be made. Contingent Ezab:hnes are disclosed in the notes. Cantihgent assefs are not
recognised in the financial statements. :

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

d.  Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and [iabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: R
. e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
e Held primarily for the purpose of trading E
@ Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e Cash or cash eqguivalent unfess restricted from being exc;hanged or used to settle a habshty for at least -
twelve months after the reporting penod : o

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liabifity is current when:

® Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

s -{tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liakility for at least twelve months after the
reporting period. '

e. Caosh ond cash equivolents (for purposes of Cash flow stotement]
Cash comprises cash on hand. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three
months or less from the date of acguisition}), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into

known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

f. Property, plent and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction, less accumulated
depreciation [ amortisation and impairment less, if any. Cost includes inward freight, duties, taxes and all
incidental expenses incurred for making the asset ready for its intended use.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and eguipment under installation/ under
development as at the balance sheet date and are carried at cost, comprising of direct cost, directly
attributable cost and attributable interest.

Page 16 of 537




TATA Cammumcatnons Transformatten Semces Lzmr{:ed

Notes forming part of the standaione ﬁnancsa! statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 :

Depreciable amount fm' Property, plant and equipment js the cost of Property, piant an_d eguipment, or

. other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value (wherever applicable). Depreciation on

- property, piant and eguipment has been provided on the straight-fine method as per the estimated useful

lives. The asset's residual values estimated useful ves and methods of depreciation are revsewed at each ;

financial year end and any change in estimate is accounted for ona pmspectwe basis,

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows

£

Property, plant & eguipment

Plant and Machinery .

- Network Equspment & Components (Refer note 1
below)

- Electrical Eguipment & Installations™

- Hetwork Switches®

- General Plant & Machinery®

Office Equipment

- Integrated Bullding Management Systerns {Refer note
1 below) '

- Others*

Leasehold Improvements

Buildings {Temporary Structures) *

Furniture & Fixtures®

Computers {servers and network}

“Estimated useful life of Assets
4toByears .
.10 vyears
13 years
15 years
Byears .

5 years

Asset life or lease period, whichever
is less :

3 years,
Loyears =~

3 io 6 years

* On the above categories of assets, the depreciation has been prcv;de& as per useful Isfe prescrs%seci in
Schedule Hto the Compames Ack, 2{}13 g A

In these cases, the lives of the assets are other than the prescribed lives in Schedule ! to the Companies
Act, 2013, The lives of the assets have been assessed based on technical advice, taking into account the

nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history

of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and malntenance

support, ete,

of occurrence.

g. Intangible assets

intangible assets are recognised when it is prebable that the future economic benefits that are attributable

Property, plant and equipment are eliminated frorm financial statement, on disposal. Losses arising from
disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the yvear

to the assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets under development includes expenditure on sofiware development eligible for
capitalisation which are carried as Intangible assets under development where such assets are not yet ready

for their intended use,
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TATA Ccmmumcatlons Transfermatson Semces L:m;ted

Notes formmg part of the standanne f‘ nancra! statements
for the yem* ended 31 March 2020 : e

. The amartrsatnon penod and the amcmsatmn methcd for an intangible asset with a F nite usefuﬁ fife are
. reviewed at the end of financial year. Changes in the expected useful life are considered 1o modify the

_'amartisatécn period or metheti, as appropriate, and are treated as changes i accounting estimate_s, BRREAT

intangibie assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for lmp&irment
whenevef there is an mdlcatton that the mtangibie asset may be :mpasreci

'intangibie assets are amcstiseé as fuitows:

Computer (Software and Application) - ‘1 3to 6 years

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised. o

tmpairment of non-financiel asset

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units [“CGU"} at each balance sheet date are reviewed for
impairment, # any indication of impairment exists. The following intangible assets are tested for
impairment at the end of each financial year even if there is no indication that the asset is impaired:

i an intangibie asset that is not vet available for use; and
fi. . anintangible asset with indefinite useful lives,

If the carrving amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, impairment is recognised
for such excess amount. The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Lass, unless the asset is carried at & revalued amount, in which case any impairment loss of the revalued
asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent a revaluation reserve is avaifable for that asset.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and the value in use. Value in use is arrived
at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor,
When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset {other than & revalued asset) in
eatlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decressed, such reversal of impairment loss is

recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount was previously charged to the -

Statement of Preﬁt and Loss. In case of reva!ued assets such reversal s ot recogmseci

" n assessing value En use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using apre- .-

tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. jn determmmg fair value less costs of disposai recent market fransactions are taken :nte
account, '

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast caleulations, which are
prepared separately for the Company as a CGUL These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a
significant period. For longer periads, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future
cash flows after the significant period.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains} a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a Right of
Use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.
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Notes fermmg part of the standalone f" nancnai statements
for the yea'r ena‘ed 31 March 2020 .

k iease and {m} the chmpany has the nght to dtrect the use ef the ass&t

TATA Commumcations '{ransfermaticn Serwces Lsmited

Lessee

' The Compeny’s iease asset c]asses pnmartiy ccms;st of ieases for i.and buildings and caiocatlons spacas

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, of
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of |

" time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
- identified asset, the Comnpany assesses whether: (i} the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i}

the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the persod of the_

'At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recegnizes a right-of-use asset ["ROU"} and &

corresponding lease liability for g}l lease arrangements in which it Is a lesses, except for leases with a term

Cof twelve months or fess {short-term feases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low velue

leases, the Company recagmzes the izase payments as an aperatmg CAPEISE O & stratght line hasxs over
the term of the lease. RN

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease

terr. ROU assets and fease isahn fities includes these aptmns when it is reasonably certain that they will be i
exercised, '

The right-of-use gssets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initlal amount of the lease
liahility adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumu%ated
depreciation and zmpasrment iosses.

. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-iine basis over the shorter

of the lease term and useful tife of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be reccverahle )
Refer to the acc&untmg policies in note Zth} lmpalrment of nan»fmam:na% asse‘l:s Lo

Th&? {ease tiabi]ity ig igitially megasured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.

- Fhe lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily
_determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. The

Company Uses return on treasury bifls with similar maturity as base rate and makes adjustments for spread
based on the company's credit rating as the implicit interest rate cannot be readily determinable. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset zf the Companv
changes its assessment if whether it wﬁi exercise an extens;cm ora termmatmn thlon '

Lease liability and ROU ssset have been separate%y presented i the Balance Sheet.

Lessor

Leases for which the Company I8 a lessor & classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the tarms
of the lease transfer substantiatly all the risks and rewards of ownership te the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease, All other leases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Employee benefits

Emplovee benefits include contributions to provident fund, gratuity fund, compensated absences and
performance incentives.

i, Short term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognised during the vear when th eranloyees render the
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TATA Cemmun catgons Transformatfon Sermc:es L:mited

Notes formmg part of the stanéalcne fi nancnai statements Ll ERETE
forthe yearendedsi March 2026 R R o R R

service, 'Fhese i’kenef‘ is :nc?ude performance incentive and compensated ahsences whieh are expected S

' ¥o occur within tweﬁve months after the end of the penod in which the empiayee renders the re!ated IR

B serv:ce. :

ii. Pastnample\ement beneﬁt&

Contributions to defined contnbutson retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when =

i emplayee& have rendered services ent:t!mg them fo the contnbutmns

For deﬁrs;ed b_enefit Schemes, the cost of pmviding beneﬁts is determined using the Projected Unit

Credit Method, with actuarial veluations being carried out at each balance sheet date which

recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit af empEuyee benefxt enttttemeﬁ’e 3nd_

' measure each unit separateiy o build up the fi na§ c}bitgatlon

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset cetling {if
applicable), excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit fiability and the
return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),

. are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with & corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements
are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods. Past service cost is
recopnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of plan amendment.

Net interest is calculated by applving the discount rate to the net defined benefit lability or asset.

The Company recognises changes in service costs comprising of current service costs, past-service

costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements under employee benefit expenses .

in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

The net interest expense of income s recogmsed @s part of finance cost in the Statement c-f me t and__

Loss.

‘The retirement benef t oblgation reccegnised in the balance shest represents the present value of the
‘defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair

. value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus_ :

the present vaiue of avaifable refunds aad reéuctmns in future contr;butlons to the seheme

ii. Other long-term employee benefits

. Compensated sbsences which are not expected to ccour within twelve months after the end of the

period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised asa fi abrhty at the present

value of the defined beneﬁt oblsgamrz as at the balance sheet date,
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products o services to the customers. As per
the terms of the contract with the customers and accordingly the performance obligations are
determined, and transactions prices are allocated. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probabie
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured,
regardless of when the payment is being made, Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration recelved or receivable excluding taxes coilected on behalf of the government and is
reduced for estimated credit notes and other similar allowances.

The Company derives its revenues from telecommunication netwerk management consulting, supply of
equipment’s and other support services. Revenues from the said services are derived from unit-priced
contracts, The consideration due to the Company is based on the performance of these services, Revenue
is recognised as the related services are performed, in accordance with the specific terms of the contract
with the customers.
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The Cumpany considers whether there are other promises in \the contract that are separate performance o

ohilgatmns to, whrch 2 portson ef the transacﬁiun price needs o be a!Eocated

Acceuntmg treatmeent of assets and hai}lhtses anssng in course of sale of goods and servsces :s set ot heiow:

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unc:end:ttonaf (: - onEy .
the passage of time is requtred before  paytent of the cons:deratlon is due} =

;. L Contract assets

Contract asset Is recorded when revenue is recogrized in advar&ce af' companies rtght to bill and receive
the consideration {(i.e. we must perform additional services or complete a milestone of performance
obhgahcn in order to bill and receive the consideration as per the contract terms).

k. Contract labilities
Contract liabilities represent consideration, received from customers in advanice for providing the goods
and services promised in the contract. The revenue recognition of the same Is deferred until the related

performance obligation as per the contract with the customer is satisfied.

Cost Deferment

The Company Incurs certain costs for transitioning customer processes before commencement of services
to the customers. Such costs are aligned with the revenue recognition for related customer contracts, '

Other mcome .

i Dividends from investments are recognised when the right to receive payment is established and no
significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists,

. . . Interest income for alf financial instruments measured at amortised cost is recorded on accmai basas
) Enterest income is mc!uded in other income iy ihe Statement of met and Loss,

Taxation
1. Current income tax

L Current tax expense s determined in accordance with the proviséans of the Incame Tax Act, 1561

i, . Provision for current income taxes and advance taxes paid in respect of the same Jurzscitctwn ate .

presented in the balance sheet aﬁ:er ﬁf‘fsettmg them on an assessment year basis.

2. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the tax base of assets and Habilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
putrposes at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assefe are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it hes become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statemnent of Profit and Loss (either in Other
comprehensive income or in equity) Is recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss. Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in Other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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l}eferred tax relatmg to iems recogmsed outsnde the Statement of Profit and Loss is ret:agmsed

outside the Statement of Profit and Loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlat:on to the i S

underiymg trangactlon esther in (}ther Comprehenswe income or directly in equfty
Deferred {ax assets and tfeferred tax Iiahilities are mffset if & legally enforceable right exists to set off

_ taxabie entxty and the sarme taxaticm authonty

Fair w!ue measummem

. The Company measures E‘ nanciai tnstruments such as dertvataves and certam mvestments, at fa;r value at -

each E}aiance sheet date.

‘Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly
. transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The falr value measurement is based_
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the llability takes place _either:

L . Inthe principal market for the asset or lability or
li. Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Hability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or lizbility, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
‘the Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficent

data are available to measure fair value, maxrmlsing the use of re!evant cbservabie ;nputs and mimmzsmg

the use of unabsewahEe inputs.

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as foiiows, based on the lowest ieve] mput that is

s;gmﬁcant to the fair value measurement as a who§

Level 1 — inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilmes

1evel 2 — Inputs are other than quoted prices induded within Level 1 that are chservable for the assetor

liahiiity, either directly (l.e. as prices) or indirecily (l.e. dertvad from prices).

tavel 3 — Inpuis are not based on observable market dats {uncbservable inputs). Fair values are
determined in whole or in part using & valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported

by prices from observable current market transactmns in the SamMe mstrument nor am they hasecﬁ on

avallable market data,

© For assets and Habilities that are recognised in the balance sheet on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
{based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole] at the end of
each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and lahilitles on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

Foreign currencies

The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR}, which is also the Company's
functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are converted into Indian Rupees at rates of exchange approximating those
prevailing at the transaction dates or at the average exchange rate for the month in which the transaction
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oCeurs, Farelgn currency tnonetary assets and Izabsht:es are cmtstamfmg as at the balance sheet date are

translated to Indian Rupees at the closing rates prevailing on the balance sheet date, Exchange cilfferersces SRS R

] foresgn currency transacteons are recogmsed in the Statement of Prof‘ t and Loss
Earnings per _shm_

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / {loss) after tax attributable to equity
shareholders by the we;ghted average number of equ:ty shares outstanding durmg the year. .-

- Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the pref\‘. / {loss) after tax as ad;usted for dividend,
‘interest and other charges to expense or income {net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which cou%d have been |$$ued en
the conversion of all dilutive potentiai equity shares. :

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party {o the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and Habilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. :

Financial assets
i. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held withina
business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the

contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash ﬂcws that are so[e!y )

payments of prmmpat and interest on the prmcnpal amount cutstandmg

i, Financial assets at Fair Va%ue Thmugh Gther Compzehens%ve Inwme (EVTOCH}
Financial assets are measured at falr value through Other comprehensive income if these ﬁnaac:ai
assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows

that give rise on specified dates to solely payments (}f principal and mtemst on the prmcnpat amwnt o

outstandmg ami by sel ing ﬁnancmt assets

i Fmancmi assets at Falr Value Thmugﬁ Pfofit of Loss {FVTPL) - :
‘Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amc;rtzsed cost
or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss. ) Lo ) o

tii. Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar finencial

assets) is primarily derecognised {i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when
a. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b. The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assef or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘vass-through' arrangement and either {2} the Company has transferred substantially alf the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The transferred asset and the associated Hability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.
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: Contmumg mvaivement that takes the farm ofz guaraﬁtse over the transferred asset i measured at - _
the lower of the origina] carrying amount of the asset and the maximurm amount of consrderatson that L

the Company could be requtred to repay

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses §E€E.) model to the fGEtewmg
&. Financlal assets measured at amortised cost

b. Financial assets measured at Fair Value thmugh Cther Compmhenswe [ncome

- Expected creé;t fosses are measured through 2 loss allowance at an amount equal to the 12- momh o
expected credit losses (expected credit Josses that result from those default events on the f“ nanc:at o

mstrument that are poss;bte w;&hm 12 months after the repartmg date)

The Campany fol%ows s:mphﬁed 3pproach’ for recogmaors of impairment Eoss alicwaﬁce o trade_ S
receivables or contract revenue recewahles : :

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment foss allowance based on ilfetame ECls at each repamng date, right fmm its mmal.

recognstwri

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward (ooking estimates. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in t?te forward- Iaaksng estimates are .
anaivseé . .

' For assessing ECL on a collective basis, financial assets have been grouped on the basis of shared risk

characteristics and basis of estimation may change durmg the course of time due tc change in rssk
charactenstics

Fmancz&[ Ezahiht;es

Fmanctai Etabeht!es are measured at amortised cost usmg the effective anterest meshod

i

ii.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on thelr classification, as described below

b Loans and borrowings
- After initial recognition, interest-bearing ioans and bcrrewmgs are subseqaentiy measureci at o

amortlsed cost on accmal hasss

i Derecognition
. Afinancial Hability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelied
or expires. When an existing financial Hability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially medified, such
an exchange or modification is trested as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recogniticn of & new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is reccgmsed in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. R

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and thereis an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liakilities simultaneously

Berivative financial instruments - initial and subseguent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its
foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subseguently re-measured at fair value.
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Derwatives are carrleé as f‘nan::lai assets when the fan’ vaiue is pasxtwe and as ﬁnanc&al EEabl%:t:es when
the fazr va!ue is negatwe :

New and amene!ed stamiards

Effectzve 1 Apr:l 2()19 the Companv adomed IND AS 116 “Leases” and applied the star:dard to ait lease ... .

contracts existing on 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective method Consequently, the Company
. recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the Incrementat
borrowing rate and the nght of use asset at its carrying amount equal to the Eease ligbility on initid
- appiication date, but discounted at the Company’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
_ application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended 31 March 2012 have not been retrospectively -
adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the accountmg poizcses mc!uded as part of our . -
: Afmuai Report for year enéed 31 March 2014, R DT E Lo

Upen adoptten of IND AS 116, the Company applied a single recognition and messurement appmach fer aﬂ
!eases ex:ept for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets - -

On transiﬁon, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition as below:

(& in fakhs}
Balance sheet As at

1 April 2019
Right of Use assets 2,310,892
Other equity 3120.01
Right-of-use abilities 443093

The following Is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

‘i, - Applied a single discount rate to & pcsrtfohcz af Eeases of similer assets in stmaiar ecenamsc envsmnment
with a similar end date. :

il Applied the exemption not to recognize rsght~of—use assets and Habilities for feases wrth Iess than 12 o

" menths of lease term on the date of initial application and for low-value leases.

fii. Exciuded the initial dsrect costs fmm the measurement of the rlght g)f—ijse asset at the date of mmal .
abplication, : :

iv. Applied the practical expedxent to grandfathes‘ the assessment of which transactions are leases
Accordingly, IND AS 1isis appized oniy to comracts that were prevsousiy tdenttf‘ ed a5 Eeases under

v. The Cc;mpany apphes the short-term lease recognition exemptmn to ;ts short term leases of pmperty
{i.e, those leases that have 2 lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do -
not contaln a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-velue assets
are recognised as expense on & straight-line basis over the leass term. :

i, Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contatned options to extend or
terminate the [ease.

wii. Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of initial
application

The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 is 8.67%.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Standards issued but not vet effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2018 notifies new Ind AS or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification

which would have been applicable from 01 April 2026,
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3, Property,p!antandeqﬁipment ST T
: CRinlakhs) o

"teasehold Building . Plantarnd Pumitereand - Office Computers “Totad
improvement Bschinery Fintures Equipment
Batance as at 1 April 2018 o 3,299.27 2178 Z,005.59 O SH.6T. 831,63 3,668.68  10,885.62
Additions : 73187 . 580,59 30185 0 MR T 390.48 - .2,122.06
Disposals - - {10.47} - ~ - {10.47)
Batance as at 31 March 2019 §,831.24 2178 257591 960,52 948,80 405916 1249721
Additions : 123 L 2,54201 6.41 86.04 . 1 84184 - -BATIES
1 Disposals - - - - S - e
Balance a5 2t 31 March 2020 4,032.47 178 8,112,792 566,93 | 1,084.84 4490100 1607474
Batance as at 1 April 2018 2,653,427 .49 4764 350.38 54148 292141 7,221.83
Depreciation 243.08 726 284,96 6143 87.80 .. 54087 . 433550
1 Disposalk - - {9.95) - B - 5.95}
Balance as at 31 March 2018 2,996.50 14.75 1,032.65 415,82 $29.28 3,462.3% £,547.38
Depreciation 29586 6.84 936,66 137.16 128,79 487.74 2,082.55
Disposals - - - - - - -
Balance us at $1 March 2020 3,392.36 ZL.59 1,968.33 548.97 758.08 394962 10,639.93 |
Balance as at 31 March 2019 1,034.74 7.03 1,543.06 548.71 310,51 596.78 4,049.83
Batance as at 31 March 2020 646,51 0.1 14841 417.96 276,76 a51.38 5,434.81
4, Right of use Assets
A ' { Fin lakhs)
Particulars Co Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2019 ' _ 2,310.82
additions o : 4,461.27
Termination B : : 1603.98)
Depreciation 182062}
Balance as at 31 March 2020 E,247.59

a. Refer note 2 {r} for effect on adoption of INDAS 116 as at 1 Aprit 2019,

b. The agpregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amomsa{mr& expenses
in the statement of Profit and Loss. :
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'?,_ Other financial assets

& in lokhs)
ks at U Asat
31 March 2020 31 Mg{*ch 2019 .
A Non-current ' ST A P
Security deposits ~ unsecured, considered good 848.53 73.48
L “Total {A} 848.53 73.48
B.  Current T .
a. Deposits to contractors and venders - unsecured, considered 92.96 . - . -152.04
cood bl R
b.  Fair value of foreign mrrency forward contracts 149.34 62.24
Others 2.15 1.56
Total (B} 24445 215.84
{a+B} 1,092.98 289.32
8. Deferred tax assets {net}
Bajor components of deferred tax asset and liahility consist of the following
(€ in lokhs)
Bsat Recognisedin Recognisedin  Retained As at
14prl 2018 statement of cther earnings 31 March 2020
: profitand . comprehensiv tmpact - R
{oss & income .
Deferred tax assets in refation to: . Lo
| Difference between accounting and tax ' 548.62 276.01 - - 824,63
depreciation / emortization S '
| Provision for doubstful trade receivahles - 57.3% B5.60 - - C1Z2.8%
1 Provision for Employee benefit obligations 3%6.11 105,83 148.05 - .. 608,99
Expenditure disallowed ufs. 40 (a} {ia} 873.01. 22542 - - J1,19843
Current year Net operating losses : - 800,36 - Co- | BOG.3E
ind AS 116 impact ' - - - 23,78 2378
Others ' {11.28) 54.59 - - 43.31
Baferred tax assets (et} 1923.81 1,522.81 148.08 25.78 5,623.45
% in lakhs}
Asat Recognised in Recognised in As at
I Aprif 2018 statement of other 31 March 2018
profitand loss  comprehensive '
fricome
Deforred tax assets in refation to:
Difference between accounting 505.37 43.25 - L4862
and tax depreciation / amartization
Provision for doubtful trade 43.30 14.05 - 57.35
receivables
Provision for Emploavee beneafit 592.98 {196.93) (39.94} 386.11
ohligations
Expenditure disallowed u/fs. 40 {a) 1,062.51 {89.50) - 473.01
{ia}
Others 39.63 {5091} “ {11.28)
Deferred tax assets {net} 2243.79 {280.04} {38.94} 1,623.81
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5.

9
\'c

lntangible assets

% in fokhs)

Compaster -
fsuftnare and
Application)
Cost . L
Balance as at 1 April 2018 292676
.| Additiohs 498.56
Disposais . .
i Balance as at 31 March 2019 2425.32
Addiitions 17115
Disposals
Balance as at 31 March 2020 &,596.47
Accurmulated amortization S
Balance as 8t 1 April 2018 1,613.28
Additions 340.12
Gisposals -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 1,953.40
Amortisation Expense 1,409.04
Bisposals
Bafanoe as at 31 Mareh 2020 %,362.44
Carrying amount
Balance as at 31 March 2019 147152
Balance as at 31 March 2020 238,03
Investments
% in lakhs)
fis at 31 March 2020 - As at 31 March 2018
Quantity Amount Guantity ' Amount
A, Non-current {Shares/units) {sharesfunits) -
vestment at cost ' ' .
tn subsidiary fully pald equity shares —
Unguoted )
Tata Communications Transformation 173,000 110.66 170,000 - 110,66
Services Pte, Limited ' ' '
" Total (A) 176,000 116.66 170,000 110.66
Current
tnvestments at fair value through profit
or loss
BMutual Funds {unguoted) - - 1,60,855.83 ¢,049.15
Total (B} - - 1,60,855.83 6,048.15
{A+8} 170,000 110.66 3,30,855.83 6,158.8% ;

The market value of the current investraents is equal to the carrying value.
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9, Income tax assets {Net}

__(Zinakhs)

As at S hsat
31 March 2020 31 March 2018
_Ad_vance tax {net of provision for vaxes) (refer {i} below} 13,680.08 C9,104,01
Total '13,680.08 - 8,104.01
4. hdvance tax includes amount paid under dispute of ¥ 335 lakhs (2019: €335 lakhs). . Lo
10, Other assets - ' v
{% in lakhs}
S As at U Asat
31 March 202¢ 31 March 2018
A, Non-current o ' SIS I
a. Capital advances — unsecured, considered good - 3.30
b. Prepaid expenses - unsecured, considered good 148.09 28267
Total (A) 14869 285,97
Current E P
Advances to employees R
‘Unsecured, considered good 135,10 444,26
Unsecured, considered doubtful 3.25 3.25
' ' (13835 44751
bess: allowance for doubtful advances {3.25} {3.25)
- ' : 135,10 444,28
b. indirect tax recoverable - considered good 2,255.08 ©o 335065
Advances to vendors . : R
Unsecured, considered good - 407.36 8T
U_ﬁsecured, considered doubtful §5.82 -
L SR BRI . 417.24 ; ._ 871
Less: allowance for doubtful advances (9.58) R
s BN 40736 BT
d. Prepaid expenses - unsecured, considered good 1,242.64 84528
Total (B} 4,080.19 4,657.90
(A8} 4,188.28 4,943.87
11. Trade receivables
(% in lakhs)
As gt As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2018
Unsecured {including unbilied receivables)
.  Considered good £8,034.51 53,426.08
b.  Considered doubtful 488.53 160.86
68,523.04 53,586.94
Less: Allowance for doubtiul debt [(expected credit loss {488.53) {16086}
altowance} [Refer note 38 {c}}
Total 68,034.51 53,426.08
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-12. Cash _atfld cash ecguivaiems
S {’? in !akhs}

hAsat 0 Asat..
3% March 2020 31 Marc_h 2019

Current accounts with banks 79948 1,882.46
Total 799.48 1,882.46

- 13. Bank balances {other than note 12 above)
(% in leskhs)

Asat . Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2_013

Other bank balancas:
Restricted bank deposits {Refer Note | below] 2.25 -
Total 2.25 -

1 2.5 lacs (2019: ¥ Nil) represents the time deposit booked against Bid Bond issued towards a Request for . .
Proposal.

14. Equity share capital
= in lokhs)

_ As at e As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

a. Authorised;

1,000,000 {2015: 1,000,000} Equity shares of ¥ 10 each _ 100.00 100.00
AT R ' 100.00 100.00

b, Issued, subscribed and pald um : B S
500,000 {2018: 500,000} Eguity shares of ¥ 10 each, fully paid up 5000 50.00

Total 50,00 56.00

&, Issued, subscribed and paid up: - _
There was no movement in the issued, subscnbed am’i paid up share c&pital of the Cempanv dufmg the R

-year,

b, Humber of shares held by sach shareholder holding more than 5% of the issued share capltak

As 3t 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2018
Noof shares  Percertage Ko of shares  Percentage
Tatz Communications Limited 500,000 TO0%, SO, 000 100%
[Parent Company}

¢. Terms / rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of T 10 per share. Equity shareholders
are entitled to one vote per share at any General Meeting of Shareholders. The dividend progosed by the
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharehoiders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of lguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion
to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders
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15 ﬂther eguity

R in lakhs)

a.  General reserve (Refer Note i below)

1 b, Retained earnings ' '

¢ Other comprehensive income {Refer Note § below)
ot

_ Asat 0 Asat
31 March 2020 31 !_V’ian:_h_zn_lg ]
1,381.97 " 1,381.97
(31,845.46 © 37,187.33 .
(149.81} 290,37 -
23,077.62 38,859.67 L

i. General reserve

The general reserve is used from time to Hme to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation

purposes,

it. Other comprehensive income

This represents the wmuiatzve gams and losses arising on remeasurement of defined employee benefit p!aas_ N

{net of tax}.

16, Provisions

&  Non-cu
?mvlstm Eﬂr employee benefli
&, Provision for grawity [refer note 33}
b, Provision for compensated absences {refer note 81)
¢ Provision for ARO Liability ' ’
¢, Provision for athers grefers belew}
_ '%’etai (A}
B,  Current
Provision for compensated absences {refer i below)
SR Total (8] ix
{A+8}

% in lokhs)
As at Asat
31 Barch 2020 3i Mgrch 2019
539.24 255,95
1,333.01 . 1,011.69
1117 R
42.17 29.87
2,325.59 1,297.51
317.77 238,75
317.77 238.75
2,643.36 1,536.26

b Provision for others is towards end of service gratuity for the Company’s Saudi Arabia branch.

ii. Provision for compensated absences includes the leave provision for branches,
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hietes formmg part of the standaione f‘ nancnal statements |

for the year ended 31 March 2020

Az Mher Ifabiimes

. {‘? i iakh_;)

. As at TAsat
_ _ 31March 2020 - 31 March 2019
| A Non-current U
' Accrued emplovee benefits 17427 . -345.26
: Deferred Re_wzn&e {Refer note | below} 390,31 U
S ©: Total (&) 564.58 345.26
N e ) | . S .. - =
| 2. Deferred revenue (Refer note | below) 353..93 _ " 480.08
b. - Accrued payroll I 5,470.18 - .. 4,747.43 |
¢ Statutery liabilities 2,105, 76 ©713.57
d.  Other liabilities - 0.10
' Total (8) 7,627.87 5,941.18
(ArB) 8,492.45 6,286.44
i, Deferred revenue represents contract Habilities
18. Borrowings
{? in !akhs}
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2018
Unsecured ' LT
Loans repavable on demand {from banks} .
a. Cash crédit faciﬁty . 14.67 ' -
[Rate of Interest per annum; 2.24%; 2019: NA} o
B, Bank overdraft 4;304_5_5_ L -
(Rata of mterest per annum; 8.15% to 8.75%,; 201%: NA)
Total 4,318.22 -
19, Trade and other payables o
: - : {Cin fakhs}
Asat 7 Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
A Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 51081 G882
{Refer note 35)
B 510.81 368.82
B Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and smali enterprises
i. Other creditors 19,357 .69 23,150.07
¢ ii. Payabie to refated parties 18,257.73% 12,714.79
(i 47,615.42 35,864.86
Total {l+l) 48,126.23 36,233.68




: Notes fcrmmg part cf the standalone fi nancial statements
' far the year ended 31 March 2020 '

_ 20, Crher financial Habilities

TATA Cammunmat:ons Transfor‘mattan Semces Lzmateé ----- S

!? in !czkhs)

fsat B Asat .
31 March 2020 .31 March 2019
Current . CL
| &  Capital goods
- Payable to related parties 15.26 _ 57.76
- Others 354.66 . 326.96
b. Other payables 28.67 63.54
S Total 398.59 428.26
21. Right of Use liabliities
{2 in lokhs}
Asat As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
A, Non-current ' '
Right of use Labllity 4,247.25 -
Total (A) 4,247,25 -
B Lurrent '
Right of use Liability 1,166.20 -
' Total {B} 1,166.20 -
{A+B) 5,413.45 -
.22, Other income
(% ine lokhs})
i’ear_e;nd_ed Year ended
31 March 2020 . 31 March 2015
a.  Interest onincome tax refund 384.93 .
b.  Gainon investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 8510 - 247.81
c. Foreign exchangé gainf(ioss} (net} ' ' : s 195.27 Y3675
d.  Recovery of Bad debts o - - 1,113.12
e. Galn on Rol asset termination 45.10 L
f. Others 503.33 266.45
Total 1,2331.73

1,664.17
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Notes form:ng part t:sf the standalone f‘ nanczal staiements :
for the year ended 31 March 2020 . - .

.23, Gpefatins_gnd_ other e_xp_ens_e %

(% in !akhs}

g

i _"¥ear_éhdé:§ - Year ended |
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
a.  ‘light and power 704.86 _.314.09 _
b. . Repairs and maintenance: L RRFCEA
i. Building _ 25290 Ul 206,61
t. Plant and machinery 3,163.74 271322
ili, Others ' 18215 ' 187.31
c.  Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 327.67 -/ f5.11)
d.  Allowance for daubtful advances 9.88 s S
e, Rent S Z,338.78 ... 202824
f.  HNetwork management and subwcentractmg charges (Refer note ) £5,096.21 R 5'36,336.94
g.  Travelling expenses : o 7,335.13 L 2,48121
h. Local conveyance 730.96 " 813.83
i Telephone expenses 1,318.85 1,415.51
i Printing, postage and stationery 95.87 - 4542
k. Outsourced manpower cost 21,932.02 _19,851.63
I, Legal and professional charges - 2,255.74 -2,443.61
m  Brand equity and Business promotion expenses SR | 256.72
r. Advertising and publicity : 28053 JB31ES
o.  Recrultment expenses 138.77 168,02
p.  Security charges 302.29 L 217.36
i a. Corporate social respomibziity {Refer Note i} 203.77 ' '223.3(}
r. Other expenses : 555.96 611.74
?otal ?2,202.89 g ‘?2,0&3.21 _

Networ& management and subcerztractsng charges includes cost of materials suppised for % 2,606.80 Eakhs o

{2019 3,500, 3?}

CAs per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereon, gross amount reqguired to be spent by

. ‘the Company during the year towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) amounting to T 203.26 lakhs ¢
" (2019: F 223.30 lakhs). The Company spent ¥ 203.77 lakhs (2019: ¥ 223,30 lakhs} during the year for the
purpose of CSR activities mainly under promotion of education and emp oyab;hty mcludmg "x“ 62 97 lakhs
{2018: ¥63.88 Eakhs} on construction / acquisition of assets.

it Other expenses include auditor's remuneration as follows: (excluding goods and service taxj:

(% in lukhs}
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Auditors’ remunerstion and expenses
. Auvdit fees 2690 18.00
b, Tex audii fees 3.30 3.00
€, Other professional services 1.50 2.15

fil. Operating and other expenses includes an adjustrment on account of Habilities no longer reguired weitien
back, pertaining to prior years.
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- Netes formmg part of the standa!one fi nanciai statements
far the year ende‘d 31 March 2020 : '

L 24, Empl_oyee bene;ﬁtsexpeens;eg L
S e (% in lakhs)
Year ended . Yearended .

31 March 2020 .31 March 2019

1 & . Salaries and related costs : o : : "38,361.03 ':_3_3.,931.85.

-Contributions to provident, gratutty and ather funds : _ 2,106.75 . . -1,632.56
{Refer note 31) . : . T e T

qe Staff wel §areax§énses- o _. ) ' R 2,753.47 o 238425
PR R Total _ : O A322125 .. 35948.67.

25, Finance costs
) % in lokhs}

" Yearended . Year ended

31 March 2020 31 Marcﬁ 2019
a,  Interest on bank overdraft and loans L 194.26 SRR ¥ 12 _
b. Interest on right of use Hability : ) : 315.14 -
c.  Gther interest 95.09 95.38

Total 504.49 108.50

26. Depreciation and amortisation expense S
' R in lakhs)

Year ended .Year ended
- 31 Barch 2020 31 r\_!_iarch_z_aw .

1 a.  Depreciation for the year on property, plant and eguipment . 2082585 . i _'1,335.5;0 N
{Refer note 3) ' - [T
b. Depreciation for the yvear on right of use assets (Refer noted) . . 92062 TR IR

| €. Amartisation for the year on intangible assets (Refer note 5} 1,405.04 340.12

Total ' a2 167562 |

During the z:urrent y@ar, th@ Cctmp&ny has pmwéed addttmna deprecnatton of T 1, 429 09 iakhs {201‘3 Nit) L R
certain assets that are not in use. - o

27. Staff cost optimisation

As part of its initiative to enhance the long-term efficiency of the business, during the previous year the Company
undertook certain organizational changes to align to the Company's current and prospective business
requirements, These changes involved certain positions in the Company becoming redundant and the Company
incurred onetime charge of € 254.99 lakhs during the year {2019 written back ¥ (199.67) lakhs} net of
recoveries.
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- Netes forming part of the stan_daione fi nanmai statements

- for the year ended 31 March 2020

28 incometar ...

ST l:'e_come tax recognised In statement of profit and foss EICIER RN

e (% in lakhs)

Particutars Year ended " Year ended
S ‘31 March 2020 - -31 March 2019 |

Current tax - R : :

| in respect of current year - e ;_3,1?3_.82
In respect of prior years 483.34 £297.60)
Total currenttax{a) - 493,36 - 2,876.22
Deferred tax
in respect of the current year {589.91) (22.10)

| tn respect of prior years {537.90) 302.15
Total deferred tax (b} {1,527.81) 280.05
Total income tax {a+h) {1,034.47} 3,156.27

k. The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows

% in Jekhs)

Particulars Year ended ' Year ended

31 March 2020 . 31 March 2019
Profit before tax - {6,332.03) - 6,849.98 |
Income tax expense calculated at 25,168% tax rate {1,593.65} . 3,082.54
(2019; 34.944% Tax rate) ' Co
Tax expense as per statement of profit and loss {1,034.47} 3,156.27
Difference {559.18) T {83.72)
Reason%ﬁg
Effect of expenses / adjustments that are not deductible in {58.88) {63.72})
determining taxable profit ' P R
Effect of prior pericd adiustiments . 44,56
One-time rate change impact {544.86)
Total {554,18) {63.72)
ncome tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss {1,034.47} 3,186.27

C. tncorne fan recognised in Other comprehensive income
F in iakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 202¢ 31 March 2019
Deferred tax .
Remeasurement of the defined benefit obligations {148.05} 39.94
Total deferred tax {148.05} 39.94
Bifurcation of income taxes recognized in other comprehensive
income into
lterns that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss {148.05) 3%.94
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' 'Notes formmg part of the standalone ﬁnancza! statements
: for the year endeaf 31 March 2020 . ' .

The Compariy has exerctseé the opticn of aner tax rate of 25.17% (mctuswe of Surcharge and Ces&)
. permitted under Section 115 BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws
. {Amendment) Act, 2019, Accordingly, the Deferred Tax Assets {net} as at March 31, 2919 have been re-, - RN
measured dunrtg the quarter ended Sept&mber 3g, 2019 o : AN B

29, Segment mfsrmatmn

3. Operatmg segments
" The Board of Directors of the Csmpany constitute the Chnef Operatmg Decision Makers (“CODM") which
allocate resources to anti assess the petformance of the Company. The Company Is engaged primarily in
the business of pmvuimg telecommunication network management, consulting and other suppos‘t services,
Considering the nature of the Company's business and cperations, there are no other repertabie segments
“In accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 108- ‘Operating Segments prescnbed o
under section 133 of the Compames Act 2(}13 S Lo :

b. . Geographical information
Geographical revenue is allocated based on the location of the customer. Information regarding

geographical revenue is as follows: ] : s

{< in lakhs}
Geography o Year ended Year ended
31 March 26_20 .31 March 2019
india L e : 95,257.09 73,757.62
Uriited Kingdom ' : _ . 20,066.78 . 20,481.74
Canada N : _ _ 6,558.80 .. . B57194
: : Usa - : . S350.77 . 1. B96.77
« : S tuxembug L ' 405684 . 3,81146
' Others L - S GT7LES T BB42E61

1,33,072.07 1,16,76214 | -

For segment non-current assets comprises of property, plant and equipment, ﬁapital work n pregress,
intangsble essets, intangible assets under develapment and other assets whsch are m&miy Eacatec{ in incita ]

¢ mfc_;rmat_son about major customers
SR . {?m fakhs)

Customername " " Asat - %oftotal . Asat . %oftotai_
DR o © 31 Miarch 2020 revenue . 31 March 2019 . revenue

Customer A ' 25,633.24 C19% 15,308.67 N :13%

Customer B L. 2406360 - 18% 24,198.03 - 21%
Customer C 20,744.79 16% 36,181.99 ' 31%
Customer D 13,452.40 10% 13,493.06 12%

The Company's exposure to customers other than the four largest customers is diversified and no other
single custormer has more than 10% of outstanding accounts receivable as on 31 March 2020 and 31 March
2018,




Notes farmmg part of the standalone ﬁnanc:ai statements
far the year ended 31 Maff:h 2020 S : . .

: 30 Eammgspershare .

TATA Commumcat:ans Transfmmatson Serwces Lkmsted

i R in Iakhs}

o A af_ _:.: ': CAsat )
31Merch2020 31 March 2019

Net Profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders (A} Tl lr(8,287.56) 5 693 71
Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year . - FB00,000 . 500,000

Weighted average humber of shares outstanding during the year (B} " . 500,000 =~
| Basic and diluted earnings per share (¥ per equity share of ¥ 10 each) : ERDSERE

'31. £mployee Beneﬁt plans

i

’ Deﬁned Cavntnbut:on Pﬁan Provident Fund

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund under a defined contribution retitement
benefit plan for employees. The provident fund Is administered by the Regional Provident Fund
Commilssioner. Under this scheme, the Ccmpany is required to contnbute a spectf ed percentage of .
payroll cost to fund the benefits. : : -

Provident fund conteibutions amounting to ¥ 1,666.93 lakhs (2019: ¥ 1,156.77 lakhs) lakhs have been

charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, under contributions to provident, gratuity and other Funds .
in note 24 “Employes benefits”. :

“There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (5C) judgement on Provident

Fund dated February 28, 2019. As a matier af caution, the Company has madea pmwsmn otz prospecttve : _' S

basis from the date of the 5C order.

Defi nevd Beneﬂt Pﬁars Gratuity

The Ccmpany makes annuai contnﬁutsons under the Employees Gretuzty schemetoa fund admsmstefed : L N
by Trustees covering all eligible employees. The plan provides for lump sum payments to amplayees_ e
‘whose right to receive gratuity had vested at the time of resignation, retirement, death while .in -

ermployment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 davs saiary for. each

completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months Vesting occurs upon compiet:on of f?ve_ N B

1years 0§ service exce:g:t in case of death,
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Notes farmmg part of the standalone f‘manc:a! statements
for the year endecf 31 Mafrch 2620 a

. These plans typrcaliy expose the Company to actuanai rssk sud’t &g mvestm@nt nsk ;nterest rate rzsk and R

' saiary risk.

-The present value of the defined benefit plan hability
s caleulated using & discount rate which is
determined by reference to market yields at the end
“of the reporting period on. government bonds,
Currently, the plan has a refatively balanced mix of
nvestments in government securities, high quality
corporate bonds, equity and other debt instruments.

investment risk

© The defined benefit obligation calculated uses & |
discount rate based on government bonds. if bond
yields fall, the defined benef‘ € ebisgat;on will tencf to,
increase '

tnterest rate risk

! sl isic Higher than expected increases in salary will increase |
alary rs the defined benefit obligation

This is the risk of variability of results due 1o
unsystematic . nature of decrements that include |
mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement. The
effect of these decrements on the defined benefit
obligation is not straight forward and depends upon
the combination of salary increase, discount rate and
vesting criteria. &t 5 important not to overstate
withdrawals because in the financial analysis the
retirement benefit of & short career employee
typically costs less per year as compared to a long
service employee. B

Bemographic risk

‘Ne other paszwr&ttrement beneftts are provided to these empfcvees

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present valug &f the defmé& benefit _

' obhgaticn were camecf cut asat 31 March 2020 by an accredited actuary.

“The prmcspai assumpnons used for the purposes of the actuarsai valuations were as fc%!ows
o : U Asst . Asat
: 81 March 2626 . 31 March 2019
Principal actusrisl assumptions o S e
Discount rate - J ' S ee0% U UT30%

Salary escalation rate ' o : O0% L D 1O0%
Withdrawal rate ' ' o
Less than 5 vears 15.00% 15.00%
5 years and more 8.00% 8.00%

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of the Government of india Securities as at
Balanice sheet date for the estimated term of the obligation.

The estimation of the future salary increase is considered by taking into account the inflation, seniority,
promotion, increments and other relevant factors,

Arnounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as
foliows
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i Nates fcarmmg part ef the stan_daione fi nancnai statements
. for tfre year ended 32 March 2020 '

o

Expenses recognised in the statement of pmﬁt and foss

Current service cest

Interest cost

Components of defined benefit costs rewgnized in the
statement of prcﬁt and Euss ' .

Rem&asurement on the net defined benefit liability
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in
net interest expense)

Actuarial {gaing) / losses arising from DBO assumption
changes '

Actuarial {gains) / losses arising from experience
adjustments o

Components of defined benefit costs recognired in
other comprehensive income

{ ?'m fakbs}

Asat . v Asat
31 March 2020 - 31 P\{iarch 2019
325.49 " 34642

9.91 7.66

335.40 .. . 354.08
C11.01 ©{29.56)
20443 . 4455

372.79 (125.28)

588.23 (114.29)

The details in respect of the status of funding and the amounts recognised in the Company’s financial
statements are as under

Amount recognized in the balance sheet
{iability at the end of the year S

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period
et liability in the balance sheet '
Non-current provision {Refer note 164}

Change in the Defined Benelit Obligation {DRBO}
Liability at the beginning of the period

Current service cost BRI

Past service cost

interest cost

Transfer inf{out}

Actuarial {gain} / loss on financial assumption
Actuarial [gain) / loss on expetience assumption
Benefits paid

Liability at the end of the period

Change in fair value of assets

Opening fair value of plan assets

Transfer in/ {out}

Expected returt on plan assets

Empioyer's contribution

Actuarial gain / {loss)

Renefits paid

Closing falr velue of plan assets

{&in lakhs}
_ Asat ' As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
{Funded) ~(Funded)
{4,025.29) '3,041.31
3,086.05 2,785.36
939.24 255,95
939,24 - 25595
© 3,041.31 3364.06
| 1325.49 34642
217.06 22206
187.60 {171.60)
204.43 44,55
372.79 (129.28)
{323.39) (634.90)
4,025.28 3,041.31
2,785.36 3,175.80
187.60 (173.60}
207.15 214.40
240.34 172.10
(11.01) 2956
(323.39) {634.90)
3,086.05 2,785.36




TATA Cmmmumcatsens Transfermat ion Serv:c:eg L msted

Nﬁtes formmg part of the standa_ one f' nanczai statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 ' o

Mamr categanes of plan assets are as feimws

L Asat U Asat

31 March zam 31 March 2019

| a.  Government of India securities (central and state) ' 2?,59% . %@1.9_2% |

. High quality corporate bonds (mchdmg public sector T Ae20% : '_ : 2302% g

/- bonds) _ _ Lo T LA
¢ Equity shares of listed campames LR e o 14.08% T 19.15%
d. Cash (mdadmg spec;ai depos:ts) [ R ._: - D.64% - . T 9.50%

1 f Other lincluding agsets under schemes of insurance) - - Coasa% 6.01% -
' © Fotal : (100% 100%

The fair values of the above eguity and debt instruments are determined based on guoted market pﬂces
in active markets Thzs policy has been implemented during the current and pmr years. : Sl

A quantitative sepsitivity analysis far sugmf“ cant assumptmns as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 is
as shown below

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, salary
escalation rate and withdrawal rate. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurrmg at the end of the repar’smg penad
while holding aEE sther assumptions constant.

@ Diss:ount rate

(¥ lakhs)

Particulars “Asat Asat
81 darch 2020 . - 31 March 2019
Effect on DBO due 1o 1% increase {286.31) C{211.36)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease © 31871 _24_1.94_
b. . Salary escalation rate Sl
{Ein fokhs)
Particulars . _ Asat . “hs at
' 31 March 2020 . 31 March 2015 .
i Effect on DBO due to 1% increase 8157 213 02
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease {259,853} {134.?3§
c.  Withdrawal rate
(Tint lakhs)
Particulars Bsat As at
23 March 2020 31 March 2019
Effect on DBRC due to 5% increase (21.70} 23.23
Effect on DBO due to 5% decreass 21.38 {56,186}

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representstive of the actual change in the defined
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another
as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit
ohligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period,
which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined henefit obligation Hability recognized in the
balance sheet.
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_ Netes f&rmmg part of the standatene f‘ nanc;ai statements
far the year ended 3:£ March 2020 -

' There was I‘EO change in the methcds and assumptmns usecf in preparmg the sens:tmty anaiysss from pner ; PERERE
years

' '_ _ Magurity pm_ﬁ_ie aff def_'i.ne;d _beheﬁt {l_lan -

(Ein lakhs)

_ As

31 March 2020

J 2 March3L,2021 b e e B

| b.. March31,2022 L IR 38870

e March3l, 2023 - ' S aTAst
Id.  March 31,2024 - _447 14
e. March 31,2025 485.55
f.  March 31, 2026 to March 31, 2030 ' 3,099.57

There has been nio change in the process used by the company te manage its risks from prior years. s
i, Leave Plan and compensated absences

Eligible ernployees can carry forward and encash leave on death, permanent disablement and resignation
subject to manximum accumulation of 60 days and 45 days in case of employes joining after 1 fanuary 2020,

- The ligbility for compensated absences as at the year-end is T 1,603.05 lakhs (2019: T 1,250.44 lakhs) as
shown under nen-current provisions ¥ 1,323.01 lakhs (2019: ¥1,011.69 lakhs} and current provision ¥ 270.04
takhs (2019: T 238.75 fakhs). The amount charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss under Salaries ané )
reiated costs m note 24 “Empicyee berzef:ts expense” is¥ 489 88 Eakhs {2019 ¥ 282 i1 Eakhs} i -

32. Related party transact;c_m_s

L . Names of related parties and nature of relotionship

S¢. No 'tategarg of related parties . Names
A Holding company : Tata Communications Limited

B " Controlling party and its Tata Song Limited .
© gffiliates *@ " Tata Consultancy Services Limited
o : BRI “Tata Teleservices Limited .
Tata Teleservices Maharashtra Limited
Tata Sky Limited
Tata Sky Broadband Private Limited
Tata Asset Management Limited
Tata projects Ltd {w.e.f. 28 May 2018)
Lokmanya Hospitals Private Limited {w.e f. 28 May 2018)
Tata AlG General Insurance Company Limited
Sir Dorabjl Tata trust fw.e.f. 28 May 2018}
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited
TVS Legistics Services Limited (w.e.f. 28 May 2018)
Tata Elxsi Limited {w.e.f. 28 May 2018)
The indian Hotels Company Ltd (w.e.f. 28 May 2018)
Piem Hotels Limited
United Hotels & Properties Pvt Ltd
Roots Corporation Limited
Titan Company Lirnited
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- Notes forming part of the standalone financial s_ta#emen_ts L

' . Jorthe year ended 31 March 2020

-

~Connegt Business Selutions Limited {formerly Tata _B_usin_es_s_ j
Support Services Limited} . U PLIER
Infiniti Retail Limited - '

¢ Subsidiary [Direct) ¢ Tata Communications Transformation Services Pte Limited
s ' (Singapore) SARE A
1] Subsidiary (Indirect) . Tata Communications Transformation Services {Hungary) Kft . -

Yata Communications Transformation Services {US} Ine ;
Tata Communications Transformation Services South Africa
{Pty) Lid : REEA o

E Fellow subsidiaries* ' Tata Communications International Pte Limited K
: : Tate Communications (Australia) Pty Limited
Tata Communications {America) Inc.
Tata Communications (Bermuda) Limited
Tata Communications {Canada) Limited
Tata Communications {Netherlands) B.v,
Tata Communications {UK} Limited
Tats Communications (Middie East} F2-LLC
Tata Communications {ireland) Limited
Tata Communications {Poland} 5PZoo
Tata Communications {Spain} SL
Tata Communication {NZ} Ltd,
Tata Communications Deutschiand Gmbh,
Tata Communications {France) SAS
Tata Communications Hongkong Limited
Tata Communications {Malaysia} SEN.BHD
Tata Communications Payments Solutions Limited
‘Tata Communication Services Internationa! Pte Ltd
Tata Communications Colisboration Services Private Limited

F Associate of holding company S5TT Global Dats Centers india Private Limited
G Key managerial Personnel Madhusudhan MR (Managing Director)
H _E‘Jthers e . Tata Communications Transformation Services Limited ...

Employees Gratuity Trust

*Where transactions have token place [ there gre bolances

# Relmbursement mode of expenses incurred b v refated party for business purpose of the Company, of reimbursement
received for expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of a related party shalf not be deemed reloted party
transoetions,

@& On May 28, 2018, Tatw Sons Linvted {"FSLY} and its wholly owned subisidiary, Penotone Finvest Limited { Panatone’),
increased their combined stake in the Holding Company to 48.90% there by gaining de-facto controf as rer fnd-AS,
Accordingly, the Helding Company has dlessified TSL and Panatone as “Controliing Entities” ond hence, the Company
hos disclosed TSI, s subsidiaries, joint ventures and associotes as the Tontrolling party and its affifiates’, effective this
date. The Compan y had disclosed TSt, its subsidiaries and its joint ventures gs Controfling porty and its affifiates” in the
previous yeor. :
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i Summary of transactions with reiated paarties

Notes farmmg part of the standaione f’ nancrai statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 R

TATA Cammumcat;ons Transformatscn Semces Lsm;ted

& in lokhs)

Particutars “Holding Lontrofting . Subsidiaries Eellow L ey - Others - Total
B rompany & - parly and {Direct and ‘subsidiaries | maneagement L T oD
its its affiliates Indivect) - Persommef
assotiates R : : i
Revenue from 1381605  30,993.86 7091 660.53 . - . 45539.75
operations ©14,01512 . 41,423.43 - 683,85 . - .56,122.40 |
Other 454.74 . 7.57 {8.30) - - i4BaLR
income 39.07 s 8.54 32.24 - - 8085
Rent 105273 130 ) - . " 1,653.83
1,716.68 007 . - - 1,726.75
| Interest on lease 157.78 - - - - - 15178
ligbifities {forms & - - - - - - -
part of lease payout
of T 607,78 lacs}
Telephone expenses 862.22 90,65 - 4.86 - - 95773
504.55 120,01 - 28.77 . S L,054.33
Brand Equity and - : - - - - . R
| Business Premotion - 256,73 - - - - 256.73
| expenses B SR
Outsourced 1,228,325 . {o.ag) - 2,610.3% - -~ 483884
ManpoWer cost 1,768.02 1684 - 3,713.86 - -, 5500.72
Insurance - 471 - - - DY %71
- 202 . - - - 202
Car Lease Rentals - 19.01 - - - - aset
! - 5837 - - - o 38.3?
Repairs & 15.81 195.39 S . - - 20830
maintenance - 104.07 - - B - 10407
Others - /0.7 - - - - 40,71
. 3832 - - - - 3832
Assets - Transfer in / - 110123 - - - - 11023
(Gus 0.23 2430 - . . - 24.53
Additions to right of 210508 - - - - - 2,105.08
use gesets™ - - - - - - -
Terrination of right ¥11.35 - - - - - 71135
of use assets - - - - - - -
Purchase of - 2,150.00 - - - - 2,150.00
current investment 3,.400.00 - - - - 3,400.00
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; Notes fermmg part of the standafone fi nanmal statements
- for the year ended 31 March 2020 .

TATA Commumeatmns Transformatmn Semces Lim;ted

| Others - Total

. 2,15635

Dl 340636,
. a7Bas

Le 4939

: "'240.34 24034

ii.  Summary of balances with refated parties

Particdars . Holding S Controliing Subsidiaries - Fellow - Key
: company & . partyand . {Directand . subsidisrles . management . -
: -its s affitiatas indirect) L . Persommel .o loliln
associates - L : . i R
Redemptionef = . 0. 2,156.25 e e S
| current investments - - B,406.16 - . - : .
Key Managerial L - e arsas
| remuneration - ' - e - RS 448.39
Contribution to - . - . .
Gratulty trust - - - - -

17210 172,10

(% in lakhs)

assets - ) - G50 - » . -
non-curent g : ’ )

Particulars Holding Cordrofling  Subsidiaries Feliow Key
U rompany & party and {Birect and subsidiaries  management
its associates  jts affiliates Indirect) C Personnel
Trade Regeivabley 6,244.19 18,496.06 13537 569.56 -
8,162.80 20,884.09 1588 8.97 -
Other assets - 043 - - . -
- 3.44 ' - - -
1 Other financial - .50 - - ' -

Cthers . - Total

.~ 25,4438
- 30,072.74

- o4
- .. 344

S “'0.50
C- o oso

~ = 18,257.73

Trade Payables ' 6,398.73 514.75 343 11,2432 ; .

e 8872.36 343.02 o 349241 - - 1271475
Other current - 104.02 124,25 © . (a8} - -z
tiabilities - 69.94 e * 229 o T T3
Other financial s 1m0 - SR = e asae
Liabilities - 377 0 - - . - R ¥ ]
Other non-current 388,72 1.48 - - - - 380.21
Liabilitles - . - - - -
Right-of-use
fiabllities - 374.69 - - - - - 874.69
Current - - - - - B -
Right-of-use
Habifities ~ ¥42.29 - - . . - 742.29
Non-Current - - - - - - -

# Amourt in alics denote previous year figures.

basis octyariod voluation for the Company as ¢ whole.
*Addition to Right of use gssets includes the impgct of ind AS 116 adoplion w.e.f. 1 Aprii 2018,
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TATA Commumcatlcns '{ransformatmn Serwces Lsm;ted

Notes farm;ng part of the standaione fi nancaai statements - o S R
- fortheyearendeds’l MarchZGZG = . e

33. Ope_r_atmg Ie_ase &rrangem_en_ts S
-Aslessee
The Company has lease contracts for immovable properties across various locations used in lts operations.
Such leases generally have lease terms between 3 to 10 years. Generally, The Company is restricted from

assigning and subleasing the leased assets. There are severat lease contracts that mclude extensmn arsd
o termmatmn optuans and v&rrahEe Eease pavmems

The Cf:mpany also has certam leases wsth iease terms of 12 months or iess

The foE&awmg is the movement in Rnght-aﬁuse Etabsht:es during the year ended 31 March 2920

: Zin .'acs}
Particutars _ ' : - Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2()19 : ' _ o L 2,430.83

1 Additions . o B _ 4,412.98
Finance cost accrued during the year ' . 315.14
Payment/Reversal of right-of-use liabilities - {1,156.53)
Liabilities settled against leased assets terminated {649.07)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 £,48313.45

The followlng s the break-up of current and non-current right-of-use ligbilities as at 31 March 2020

£ in toes)
Particulars L ' o - Amount
Current Habiity .. | ' : : S 1,166.20
Kon-current liability : : i 4,247.25
Baiam:e as at 31 March 2020 5,413.55

The table below prcmdes details regarding the cantractuat maturizses of nght«of-tzse itabiietzes as at 31 March .
2020 on an undiscounted bas:s L : o R

(% in lacs)
A3 at
31 March 2020
Due not later than one year . 1,558.65
Due later than one year but not later than five years 4,839.52
Later than five years -
6,398.18

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to lts right-of-use labilities as the current
assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to right-of-use liabilities as and when they fall due.
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' Notes fnrmmg g:art of the standaiane ﬁnancsal statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 :

34. (_:ontingent I:ab:!mes and cammntment_s

: TATA Cammumcatieﬂs Transformation Semces Lsmlted

Centmgent Iiabnfities

{? i !akf'fs}

"= Claims for taxes on income {Referi) ERRE R e .. 57838 .. 54836

Asat “As at
31 March 2000 31 March 2018
Claims agamst the Company pot acknowﬁedged as de&t ) B Lo

-Others(Refern ' T E S B,61455 T 4,106.00

These pertain to dernand notices in respect of certain transfer pricing and other adjustments carried

oyt by Revenue authorities and non-compliance of TDS for whcch the Company has preferred appea%s o o

andf or fi Sed :ectrﬂcatmns which are pemfmg

COther claims pertain to claims raised by 2 service provider for alleged breach of the contract. The
contract provided for arbitration as the means of dispute resolution. An Arbitrator has been appointed
by Court to resolve the dispute between the parties. [n the arbitration, the service provider has filed its
Statement of Claim. Soon thereafter, and before the Company could file its Defense to Service Provider’s
Staterment of Claim and/or raise potential Counterclaims, parties were referred to mediation/
settlement by the Arbitrator. K the dispute is not amicably settled, parties would have to continue
arbitration proceedings. i is however difficult to predict the oulcome of these proceedings as the
dispute is currently at a very nascent stage {Le. even pleadings have not heen completed). While the

company believes that it has reascnable defenses agamst Servme pmv;der § cEaims, th& amount has . .

been diseiase& as contmgent Hability.

Commitments

i. Capiltal commitments

. Estireated amount of contracts remaining (net of advances) 0 be executec! on capttai account, not
pravnded for ¥ 156.92 lakhs {2919 ¥ 151.27 Eakhs) :

i, Qther commitments

Q

The Company has Issued corporate guarantee for credit facility arrangements in respect of one its

subsidiary of € 7,923.30 lakhs (USD 10.50 mn) {2019: ¥ 3,258.75 lakhs (USD 5.25 mn)). .
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Nutes farmmg part of the standaione f’ naﬁc:a[ statements
_for the year ena’ed 31 Mm'ch 2020 - .

35,

36.

TATA Commumcattcns Transformatmn Semces L mrted

Discie&ure retgmred under Sec’tlon 22 of the Micra, Smal and Medium Ertterpﬂses Beve!epment Act, 2936 ;
f? in Iakhs}

. Asat o CAsat
‘31 BMarch 2820 31 March 2019

a. Principal amount remaining unpasd to any 3u$}piie=’ as at the end of 50912 o ' _' /360.09 |
the accounting year SRR R

b. Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any suppher as at the end - 169 U 8_‘_ 73
of the accounting year | . . SR

c. The amount of interest paid aicmg with the amounts of the payment 453141 ©.13,689.55

made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
Includes amount of interest € Nil paid during the year

d. The amount of interest due and pavable for the year ' . 1.68 i .; L :8.73
e. The amount of interest accrued and rermaining unpaid at the end af : ' 169 . 0 873
the accounting year . I

f. The amount of further interest due and pavable even in the B
succeading vear, until such date when the interest’s dues as above o -
are actually paid

g. Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 510.81 368.82

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on
the basis of lnfarmatsen collected by the Managemen’c This has been refled upon by the aucittars

Derivatives
Derivatives not designated as hedge instruments

The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts to manage some of its transaction exposures. The foreign
exchange forward contracts are not designated as cash flow hedges and are entered into for pericds consistent

- with foreign currency exposure of the underlying transactions, generally for a peried of 1 to 3 months, _

Cutstanding derivatives instruments are as follows: P
: ' < in lalchs)

As at 31 March 2020 Ag at 31 March 2019
(merztm {Amemm ¢ {Amountin s {Amount
Foreign i Foreign iR
Currency} R} Currencyl . - iNR)
i, Forward exchange contracts (Sell} . o ’
CAD 22.48 1,222.68 11.33 597.13
EUR - B 3.50 2B1.52
GBP 3250 3,063.51 22.0% 3,003.348 E
ZAR - - 71.33 33842 ;
ii. Forward exchange contracts (Buy}
uUst 57.50 4,212.44 15.00 1,08%.32
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Notes forming part of the standaisne f‘ nanc:a! statements
j‘or the year ended 31 March 2020 - o .

37‘ Finandai mstrumems

The signir” cant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis

on which income and expense are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial hab;lrty and -

equtty mstfument are dzschsed in note Z{q} to the fi nanc;al staternernts,

Financ:ai assets and liabﬁifties

The carrying value of financial instrurnents by categories as at 31 March 2020 is as follows .+

(% in lakhs)

Fair value through Derivatives Amortised . Total carrying
Cpeofltorloss L instrument cost vallse
Financial Assats; S D ' L :
Other financial assets ' - 149.34 - 843.64 .1,082.98
Trade receivables ) . - 68,03451 68,034.51
Cash and Cash equivalents - - 79848 795.48
Other bank baiances _ : 2.25 2.25
Total _ - 3149.34 69,779.88 69,929.22
Financials Linbilities:
Borrowings ) - - 4,318.22 4,319.22
Right-of-use liabilities - - 5,413.45 5,413.4%
1 Other financiat lisbilities . - - 349859 398.59
Trade payables - - 48,126.23 48,176.23
Total - - 58,257.49 58,257.49
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2012 is as follows
..... (% in lakhs}
Falr value through Darivatives Amortised T&tal carrying
: profit or fogs - instrument - eost v&iue o
Financial Assets: i s :
tnvestmants {other than at cost) - L 6,049.15 - Ce 6 049.15
Other financial assets _ SRR 62.24 227.08 289,32
Trade receivables - - 53,426.08 53,426.08
-1 Cash and Cash equivalents . - - 1,882.46 1,882.46
| Total . Lo L 6,04808 . 824 ' 5553562 < - 61,647.01
Financials Liabilities: .
Other financial liabilities - - 438,26 428.26
Trade payables - - 36,233.68 36,233.68
Total - - 36,661,824 36,661.94

Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans and trade pavables as at 31 March 2020
and 31 March 201% approximate the fair value because of their short-term nature, Difference between carrying
amounts and fair values of other financial assets, other financial Habilities and borrowings subsequerﬁﬁv

measured at amortised cost is not significant in each of the years presented.
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"f‘ATA Commumcations Transfc:)rmatlon Serv ices L:msted

Notes farming part of the standaione fi nanc:al statements

far the yeafr ended 31 March 2020

i Fair vaiue hlerarchv

The falr value hierarcﬁv is based on mputs to vaiua’tion technigues that are used to measure fali’ value that are S

gither cbs&wable or unobsewable and consist of fol!awsng three Eeveis
: s Level 1: Enputs are quoted prn:es (unadjusted) in actwe markets fer identical as&ets or I:abtl:tses

Level 2: !nputs are other than qucted prices included wnthm Level 1 that are observahie for the assetor, hahzhty, L :
-exther ffEFECtFV fE e as preces) or indirectly (i.e derived from pnces) : : O

Level 3: inputs are not basecé on observable masket data {unobservabie inputs]. Fair values are determmed in
whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from
observable curre_nt m_arket _trarssar:_tmns m the seme instrument nor are they based on available market data,

The investments mciuded in fevel 2 of falr value hierarchy have been valued usmg quutes avallabie fer samilar
_assets and lsabéimes in the active market, : Lo :

(i} The foliowing takle summarises financial assets and Habilities measured at fair velue on a recusring basis
and financial assets that are not measured at fa;r value of 3 recurring hasis {but fair value dlseioszire are

reguired}
f"i‘ in !akhs}
Financial assets Fair value as at - L Fair value hierarchy
31 March 2020 31 tdarch 2019
Financial Assets ' _ . '
Investment in mutual funds _ ' - 6,049.15 Levell
Foreign axchange forward B i is04 62.24 _ ji_e_\’ﬂ.__z_ -
contracts JEN : :

38. Financigl risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial Habilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings and trade
and other payables. The makn purpose of these financial liabilities Is to finance the Company’s operations andio
support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include foans, trade and other receivables,
current investrnents and cash and cash equivalents and current investments that derive directly from its -
operations. The Company has investments in mutual funds on which gain or loss on fazr value is r@wgmsed R
through profit or Eoss and also enters into derivative transactions. : R

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit nsk anci Esqu:dity risk. The Cumpany’ s semor management
oversees the management of these risks. T

The Company's senior management ensures that financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies
and procedures and that finandial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company’s
policies and risk abjectives. All derivative activities for risk management perposes are carried sut by specialist
teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the company's policy that no trading in
derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Senior Management reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

&  Moarket risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and
other price risk, such as equity price risk and cormeodity risk. Financial instrements affected by market risk
include loans and borrowings, deposits, Fair Value Through Profit or Loss mvestmer&ts and detivative
financial instruments. e g
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for the yeczr ennfed 31 March 2020 g .

b

TATA Commumcatgons Transfermatmn Semces Lam:ted

Foresgﬁ mrfencsf risie

i .Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or 'f'umre cash flows of an exposure will fiuctiza'te because

of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in forezgr; exchange

rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities {when revenue or expense is dencmmated in oo

& Eereagn curr&ncy) and the Company’s net srwestments ire fere:grs subsedxanes

. The Company manages ts foreign currency risk by hedging transactions that are expected to ocour mthm__ . S
i@ maximum 12 menth permd for hedges m‘ forecasted saies and purchases R

: Forergn currency sens:tivity

Ti‘ﬁe forelgn exchange rate sensitivity Is calcufated by aggregatton of the net foreign exchar:ge rate expasure

and a simultaneous paraliel foreign exchange rate shnft of all the currenc:es by 5% agasnst the functlonai ’
L Lurrency e}f the Company. SR . AR

. The following analysis has been worked cut based on the net exposures of the Company as of Ehe date of
- balance sheet which would affect the statement of Profit and Loss ami equity. : :

The following tables sets forth information reiating to foreign currency exposure {riet) as at 31 March 2020
and 31 March 2019,

(% in lakhs)

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2018

Financial Financial Financial Financiat

Currency : - lighiitles Assets liabilities - - “Assets
Omani Riyal . .~ . ARV S 5953 - - 283%
CAD R o Coe T eapo7 - 162209
| GBp o S 2,28483 - A72737
EUR : L Lo ese3 . gssag
usp L a60mE7 - 13708 -
AUD S L 3ar e B04s o
Others ' 685.22 - 53234 . 0. 11.94

%% appreciation/ depreciation of the respactive forelgn currencies with respect o fﬁnctxonai currengy of

; the Company would result in decreasej increase in the Company's profit before tax by )
Capproximately ¥ 201.68 lakhs and ¥ 59, 66 !akhs for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2819_ .
- respectively, : .

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under 2 financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
{primarily trade receivables] and from its financing activities, including deposits with barks and fmaﬂc:al
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other firancial instruments.

Page 51 of 537




TATA Cemmumcat cms '{ransformatlon Semces

Notes farmmg part of the standalane f’ nanciai statemenis
for the year ended 31 M’arch 2020 BRI

- The Campany has appfteé s:mphf ed approach for computing the expected cre&it Joss a!iowance fcr tradé“.l - R

Lsmlted

" receivables based on provision matrix. The provision matrix takes in to consideration the historical credit

loss experience and the adjusted for forward looking snformatmm The expected credlt loss aEtowance is e

: hased on the agemg of the days the recewab?es are due,

(? in iaf:hs}

Ageing of ree;e_ivah!es .

Within credit peri od

- As _af -
31 March 2020

CAsat

.'31 March 2619

2621582 2813073
01-90 days 26,322,058 . 20504.08
91-180 days 9,839.23 +°8,853,83
181-360 days '5,387.96 . . 29545
Mare than 360 days 259.45 541.99
Total 68,034.51 53,426.08
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance
{Z ir lakhs}
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at beginning of the year 160.86 165.97
Movement in expected credit loss aliowance on trade S B27.67 {5.11}
receivables calculated at lifetime expected credit losses {net)
Balance at the end of the year 488.53 166.86
d. quu:dmf resk
The Company m_onitars its risk of a shortage of funds using a liguidity planning teol.

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on
titne or at a reasonable price. The Company’s corporate treasury department is respensible for Equidity, )
funding as well as settlement management, In add:tlon, processes and policies related tc such r:sks are -

aoverseen by senior management.

. The table Ekeic:w surmmarizes Ehe mawrsty profile of the Campany s financial liabilities based on cantractua?_ oy o .

payments.
R‘ in !ak&s}
As at fa ! Gto 12 1ot *Zyears - . Total
31 March 2020 demand meonths years S -
Trade and other payables 15,911.7% 32,243.11 - - 48,154.90
Right-of-use Habilities - 1,166.20 4,287.25 - 5,413.45
Borrowings - 4,319.22 - - 4,319.22
Capital creditors 52.21 3z - - 369.92
(% in tokhs)
As at On Gto 12 itah »5 years Total
3% March 2019 demand manths years
Trade and other payvsbles 15,714.70 2058251 - - 34,297.21
Capital creditors 301.54 62.75 364.73
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Notes formmg paﬂ: of the standa!one fi nanmai statements
far the yecxr endeci 31 March 2029 B :

_'39.

The Coyid-19 pandemlc has caused & fundamentai shn& in the cperatnons and short to—medrum term strategses '

i of telecom operators and CSPs {our customers] across the world. With increased restrictions on movement and

a0,

41,

42,

43.

with & majority of people working and studying from home, the demam& for data has increased dramatically.
This, combined with the heightened macro and micro-econemic uncertainty, has resulted in CSPs focusing their

“efforts on increased network resilience and 2 relook at planned capex spends tparticdlarly on new

technologies). The Company has considered internal and external information while finalizing various estimates
in relation to its financial statement upto the date of approval of the financial statements by the Board of
Directors and has not identified any material impact on the tarrying value of assets, lisbilities or provisions. -’
Keeping in mind that this is a rapidly evolving situation, the company shall continue 1o assess exnstmg customer__ o

' ree;uirements as weli as chai!enges faced by them to take appmpnate act:ons aceordmgh,r

The remuneration payabfe to the Managing airectar far the year ended March 31, 2(}20 is in excess of the limits
applicable under section 197 of the Companies Act 2013 {the “Act’), read with Schedule V thereto, by T 35757
takhs. The Company proposes to ebtain approval of the shareholciers ina generat meetmg E)v way of a spec;al i
resa#utmn to enisure cempiiance with the Act . )

Events after tshe reporting period .

There are no subsequent events between the year ended 31 March 2020 and signing of ﬁnancuai s&atements as
on 09 June 2020 which have material impact on the fmanc:als of the Company.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 09 June 2020,

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/ re-arranged where necessary to confirm to current year’ s

- ‘clagsification / d;sciosure

in terms of our report attached ' : * Forand on behalf of Board of Directors .~ . . -

For $.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP
Lhartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Hormuz Master . Madhusudiian ME adesh Soyal

o

Partner : Managing Director Birector
Membership Numbgr: 116787

Place: Mumbai

Umasrees Katamrajy
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bumbal

Date: 09 lune 2020 : : Date:; 08 lune 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Tata Communications Payment Solutions Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Cnininn

We have auditad the accornpanying Ind AS financiz! statements of Tata Communications Payment
Solutions Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement an the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS
financial statements, including a surmmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
imformation,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (the "Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principies generally accepted in india, of the state of affairs of the Company as at

March 31, 2020, its loss inciuding other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opindon

We conducted cur audit of the Ind AS financial staternents in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143{10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those
woeniige s e Lather Cesuibed inihic ‘Auditor's Respaonaibiities for the Audi of the ind AS Finansia:
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code
of Ethics’ issued by the inslitute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial staternents under the provisions of the Act
and e Ruies thereunder, and we have fulfillad cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
suificient and appropriale to provide a basis for our audit epinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Gther Information

Thz Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director's and the Management report but does not include
the Ind AS financial statements and cur auditor's report thereon. The Director's and Management
report is expected to be made availabie to us attar the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.,

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
informatior. identified above when it becomes available and, in deing s¢, consider whether such other
information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the sudit or otherwise appaars to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

/SR Batliboi & Associates LLE. a Linnted Laabiliny Partnership with £1.P [dentity No. AAB-4293
Regd. Offive 1 22, Camae Streel. Block O™ 3" Floor, Kolkata 700 36

Page 54 of 537



5.6

PATLIBOI & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountams

Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directers is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash fiows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under saction 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
inciudes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reascnable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the ind AS
financial statements that give a frue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error,

Iri preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aliernative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditot’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial siatemients as a

- whole are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material ¥, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive (o those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal controf,

+  Obtain an understanding of internal controf relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adeguate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

> .-._.'

Iude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concemn basis of accounting
3 ; on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
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events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadegquate, to modify our opinicn. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditer's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
inciuding the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compiied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Repcort on Other L.egal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (the “Order”), issued by the Central
Government of india in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; :

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity deait
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies {indian Accountlng
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

{e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the provision of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act in relation to
managerial remuneration is not applicable to the Company;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 33 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Charteraed Accountants
ICALFirm Registration Number: 101049W/E 300004

Per Hormuz Master
Partner
Membership Number: 110797

UDIN: 20110797AAAAAVET33
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 8, 2020
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Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Reguiatory Requirements” of our report of even date
Re: Tata Communications Payment Solutions Limited (the “Company”)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(vi)

(vil)

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details of fixed assets.

{(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year
but there is 2 reguiar programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment/ fixed assets of the
Company and accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)c) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company

The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(il) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii{a), (b) and (¢) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented
DO,

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable,

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified
the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the
products/services of the Company.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of
excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance are not applicable
to the Company,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service
tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax,
cess and other statutory dues were cutstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the records of the Company, the dues of incorme-tax, sales-tax, service

tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax and cess cn account of any dispute,
are as follows: '
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Name of the Statute | Nature of | Amount | Periodto | Forum where the dispute is_|
o - | theDues - | (Rs.In | whichthe . | pending
i Lakhs) | amount - ST T
-] relates : EERRAARISL AR
Kerala Vaiue Added | Sales Tax 0.87 2013-14 Sales Tax Officer -Walayar
Tax, 2003
Bihar Value Added VAT demand | 121.23 | 2014-15 Deputy. Commissioner of
Tax, 2005 Commercial Taxes, Central
Circle, Patna
UP Value Added VAT demand | 45.18 2015-16 Sales Tax officer - Lucknow
Tax, 2008
Income Tax Act, TDS demand | 486.81 2017-18 Income Tax department -
1961 Mumbai
(viii}  in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the

(ix)

o~
4
R

(xi)

(xii)

(i)

(xiv}

management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a
financial institution, bank or government or dues to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments)
and term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud / materiai fraud on
the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company and hence
reporting under clause 3(xi) are not appilicable and hence not commented upon

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, fransactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review
and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company
and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company

_ has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

lCi Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Hormuz Master
Partner
Membership Number: 110797

UDIN: 20110797 AAAAAVET733
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 9, 2020
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Annexure 2 referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date
Re: Tata Communications Payment Solutions Limited {the “Company”)

Report on the internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tata Communications
Payment Solutions Limited (the “Company”) as of March 31,2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Confrols

The Company’'s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Instifute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of refiable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtair audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed io provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for exiernal purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these financial sta%ements includes those policies and procedures that {1)
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transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and
(3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financiai reporting with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of coliusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Alsc,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference o
these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the poticies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in ali material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financiai statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at

March 31,2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batiiboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
IGAl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Per Hormuz Master
Partner
Membership Number: 110797

UDIN: 20110797AAAAAVBT33
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 9, 2020
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Tata Communications Payment Solutions timited
' Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020 '
' PR St ' | i chAsat Pl Asat
Barticulars | - Notes |- 31 March 2020 .. 31 March 2019
T T Rintacs T ¥intacs
pssers T " i i
{8} INon-current assets R : R : S
{a} :iProperty, plant and equipment 3. U o 118,119.48 S 26,812.30,
{b} iRightof Use Asset 07 0 4 LU 1L,31366 ) Lol e
{c} |Capital work-in-progress E RO - 4449 : I B7.68
(d} fintangible assets .- 5 R X e =
(e)  iFinancial Assets | L e s L : e A e
{iy Other fingncial assets, BA LT ho e U4,36878 ot T AB2BLT
ifi  ]Income tax assets {net) . 7 X S R,27432 S s e72.84
{g) 1Otherassets . : BA o 10.28 O - '43.08
. |Fotal n'oﬂ-currentassets 32,174.64 30,324.71
{2} |Current assets
(a) |Financiasl Assets . Co e
{i) Trade receivables 5 - . : 2,573.41 .- 403501
{it} Cash and cas_hequivalerzts 1G - - 35{465.54 - 1BLDpE2.74
(i) Bank balances other than (i) above i : 17.00 IR X 'e
(i} Other financial assets 68 S 1,948.99 .t 24108
{b) |Other assets o 88 | ,96D.2¢ ©L,966.77
Total current assets 41,966,23 58,352.60
Total assets 74,140.87 88,673.31
B EQUETY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
{a) |Equity share capital 12 C98,709.18 58,709.18
{&) Other_equi_ty 13 {82,737.58) (70,8%1.20)
Total equity 15,971.59 27,817.98
0 fLiabilities . B :
{1} :[Nen-turrent Babilities X
{a) - |Financial Liabiliies ; : : . AR P
e “{i} Right of Use liabilities 18A Lo, 8,21838 ' R
(b} |Provisions : 14A ) : C.BALTS 131833
{c) jOther liabilities 154 L B0TL : T §1.58 |
Total nen-current liabtlities 8,591.79 355.92
(2} [Current liabitities
(8} . {Financial Liabilities : L
{1} Borrawings 6 e 32,006.25 - - '45,478.15
{il) Trade and other payables : 17 . [ : ) . A
T "J_..Tutai oufstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 174 S T e NN30.65 R -': i429.43
+-2, Total outstanding du_esc.fcredi_tors qther than micro enterprises and smalt 178 Lo 10,662.70 ST 12,293.97
(i} Right of Use liabilities : 2 ' 188 . el 4,190.82 ShiT e
{iv} Other financial Liabilities ig : - B52.80 N 1,328.55
{b} | Provisions 14B 13.51 1281
e} | Cther liabilities 158 182076 ’ 91651
Total current liabilities 49,577.49 60,459.41
Total equity and liakilities 74,140.87 #8,673.31

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of gur report attached

For $.R. Batliboi & Associates Lip

Chartered Accountants :
A egiit)atiun Number: 101049W/E300004

For and on behalf of the board of Directors |

Partner

Ridhi Sood
{ompany Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated: 09 June 2020

o

Piace : Mumbai
Dated: 69 June 2020
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Chief Executive Officer{
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“Tata Communications Payment Solutions Limited
~Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

S ’ . 3 T Ry - S RS - Year ended

Particulars No.te;: : 3; Ma.;_ch zc:izo 31 Ma'rd:l:_zejl.g
L T . : ERRREN . . ST TES FSEC BRSO it
I {Revenue from operations . . 34,340.08 '35,707.76

S I R RSO Sl ! = : ) . 84,340.98 35,707.78

i jOther Income I Lo L . X DR 20 271.07 1,235.08
Hi |Totaftncome fl+ M)y T : L : . 34,612.05 36,942.84
IV |Expenses: FOE o Lo e . ;
‘10Operating and other expenses Lo [ 21 e 24,5%1.27 32,324.88
Employee benefit expense . . T N : o E 22 CLI2,762.64 Z,852.06
Biancg costs, o T T R T et 23 RN Yol ¥ 2.849.82
Depreciation and grmortisation expense - L oo : . B : 24 13,838 34 1141256

| [TotalExpenses - T : : 45,205.4% 45,446.42
4V Lussbefofeexceptlonai items and tax {Hi - Iv) s . . . VT {10,593,36) ’ l12,5l?_3.5_§)_
VI |Exceptional ltems 0L ' G 25 : “is.03) TR
Vit [Loss before tax (V- V1) L L VR e e e ) 110,584.37} (12,521.68}
Vit Taxexpense 0 ) o o AR -
IX jtoss for the year (ViE- Vi) 7 o AR R L {16,584.37] {12,521.69)
¥ |Other comprehensive income/ {loss) SR T

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - . .

(1} Rereaswrements of the defined benefit plans X . : o (20.06} 5.17

. |Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year, net oftax R : s {20.06} 517
T xt [ Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax [IX + X} . L : {10,604,43} {12,516,52)
Basi¢/ Diluted Earnings per share {of ¥ 10 each} : ) 28 ) (1.07) e

See geccompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

_Interms of our report attached . : : For and on behalf of the board of Dire?td

Fof S.R. Batliboi & Associates LhP
{ha 4 Accountants
FNumber: 161043W/E300004

- Partner
Membership Number: 120787 -

\/774& /
“Ridhi Sond anjeev Fatel

_Ccmpany Se;retary ) o . Chigf Executive

Place : Mumbai
Dated: 09 June 2020

Piace : Mumbai
Dated: 09 June 2020
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: . Tata Communications Payment Solutions Limited
- o " Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
s i Ll DN R s R Year Ended “Year Ended
Particuls .
rarticarn _BLMarch2020) 31 March 2019
: L ¥ inLacs TinLacs
Cash Flows from operating actmtaes T L : B RERSRRA R L I
'Losshefore Bay o R ) R IR R {10,584.37} . A12,521.69)
Adjustn‘_se_nt_s_far SRR L : : ! A : TR : L
Depregiation and amomsation expense .ot o RS RS “o U 313,829.34 : - 11,419,568
-'anancecost PR SRR S B I T CLUABIZAE E L U 2,849.97 |
Loss/(Gam} on write ofi of sale m‘property, plant anci equlpment and mtangible assets (net) - T {115.41) G 1.(.346.25)
Fixgd sosels written off e S . . % B 4178 R 40.41
Allowance for doubtfu! advances . - - P S s RPN S 232.70 358 25,
Allowance for trade receivables : Tl o T . : S az23) o 492 isf
Bad debts L S : AR - 50,19
Cperating profit before working capntaichanges : C : o . P 7,568.4% 2,352.54
Adjustment for (increase) / decrease in operating assets: S T ] T
Trade receivable ' 1,319.32 _2,967.07
Other assets , 050 0 S : : PO S Le4an.73) S lanm
Adjustiment formcrease}[decrease} in opefatmg !aabllitxes : e : L ) :
Trade and other payables A L TR ’ . S ’ 1 {1,780.90) ©{2,048.83)
Provisions Lo TR : S o o {14.98} L TLBAg)
Other Liabilities o : : S _f P 85346 (18.33)
Cash (used in} or generated from aperations E : ' ' : - 6,297.66 3,404.98
Income tax {paid)/refund received (net) ’ . ' . 398.53 {941.27)
Net cash flow (Used in} or generated from operating activities : . 6,696,159 2,463.71
Cash flow from investing activities
Payrsents for purchase of property, plant and eguipment and intangible assets . . : {1,803.48) 12,278.17)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment . - S .158.73 ", 448.74 |
Fixed deposit placed : RO o : : : . - {2.00)
Net cash used in investing activities R T R {1,643.73) ) {1,831.43}
Cash flow from firancing activities SRR o R L
‘{Repayment) / Progeeds from current bormwngs L : ORI L s 4Tasey| T Taanesy)
Interestpaid 71 : s S SR 3 183.84) U (2,758.14)
Payment for acquiring right of use assets " : R R Lo E,08383) Lol
Net cash flow {used in} / generated from financing activities o Sy e {21 679.66) {2,980.13)
Metincrease an cash and cash equivalents . ~© e psszan] 2 3enes)
- Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year . DL o 52,002.74 §4,440.59 S _
-Cash and cosh equivalents ss atend of theyear 1. ) : SR I ' | 35,465.54 | ¢ CosageaTa o
‘Note: SR S
Figures in bracket represent ecutflows. .

In terms of our report attached
For 5.R. Batlibol & Associates LEP
hartered Accountants
BFi Regs{ration Number: 102048W/E300004

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Master
Partner
Membership Number: 110797

v

Ridhi Sood Sanjeev Patel /
Company Secretary  Chief Executiviifficer  Chigf Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 09 June 2020

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 09 June 2020
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. 'Tata Communications Payment Solutions Limited
" Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020 -

A Equity Share Capital

(& iﬁ I;acs) )

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

. In terms of our repoit attached
For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants .7

ridiz Master

“ o Partner
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“Aadesh oy_éti ) P

‘No. of Shares .| Amount |
" IBalance as at 1 April 2018 . . 75,44,57,415 | 75,445.74 |
_{Converted fram CPS to equity 23,26,34,369 23,263.44
Balance as at 31 March 2019 98,70,51,784 98,702.18
s{Changes during the Year - - -
{Balance as at 31 March 2020 98,70,51,784 98,705.18
. Other Equity - . E ’
Ce : (T inr Lacs) -
- S Securities " | Contribution DRI " Other : :
Particutars _ remium from parent | Retained earnings | Comprehensive | Total Other equity
AT P o company Intome . : S
Balance as at 1 April 2018 45,490.81 | 5,4496.42 {1,09,401.49) . 39,58 {58,374.68]
~ {Loss for the year SRR - {12,521.69) - {12,521.69)
- {Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 5.17 T 517
Total comprehensive income/f{loss) for the year 45,490,81 5,456.42 {1,21,923.18) 44.75 {76,891.20)
Baiance asat3l Mafch 2019 45,420.81 5,496.42 {1,21,923.18) 44.75 {70,891.20)
Loss for the year - - (10,584.27) - {10,584.37)
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - {20.06} {20.08)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period 4545081 5,496.42 {1,32,507.55) 24.69 {81,495.63)
IND AS 116 Impact - - (1,241.56) - {1,241.56)
. {Balance as at 31 March 2020 45,490.81 5.496.42 11,33, 74551} 24.69 {82,737.59)




Notes formmg part of the fma_ncnal statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 . -

: '1_.

Corporate mformat:on

‘E¥timates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing cwcumstances and

'TATA cOmmuntcatlons Payment Solutmns umlted {the ’Company) was mcorporated in lndsa on 28 february
©..2008 to engage in the business of providing infrastructure managed services and incidental activities to banking
- -sector and has obtained authorization from Reserve Bank of India to set up, own and operate White Label
| Automated Teller Machine {‘ATM'} under the Payment and Settlement Systems Act, 2007. The Company operates
“under the brand name ‘indicash’ for its White Label ATM Business. The Company also carries out the business of
end-to-end ATM deployment (i.e. Brown Label ATM), end-tc-end POS enablement, dealing in and handling a
‘portiolio of products that integrate white label ATM management, POS and merchant system, credit and debit _
card system and internet banking, mobile banking and other related serwces The Company 15 a who%iy owned '
subs:d:ary of Tata Commumcatmns Lzz’mted {Holdmg Company) : .

“The Company is domlcnled in indla and its regxstered office is at Plot No. €21 8 C36 ‘G’ Bfock Sandra Kurla Complex
.Mumbax 400 098 ’

Slgmf’ cant accountmg policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS}

" notified under the Companies (indian Account:ng Standards) Rutes, 2015.

Basis of preparation of financial statements .

g 'ilabllmes whtch have been measured at fazr value or revaiued amount,
SRR A Denvatsve fmancna% mstruments S

i Certam f:r:anaal assets and !labzimes measuz’ed at fair value {refer accountmg pOIle regardsng flnanc:al

: mstruments)

The accounting pohcues adopte& for preparatlon and p{esentatmn of fmancual szatements have been

consistently applled except for the changes in accounting policy on introduction of |nd AS 136 that was - A
: eﬁ“ectwe for annuat persod beg;nnlng onor after 1 Apra% 2019 L '

: The fsnancxal statements are presented in Jnd|an Rupees (ENR), and aEE values are rour;cied to the nearest iac o e

(ENR 00 000), except when OtthWlSE mdlcated

Significant accounting estimates and a_ssumptions :

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with recognition and measurement principles of
ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liability as at the date of the financial

statement and the reported amounts of income and expense for the year presented.

Estimate and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are
recoghised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
Iiabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
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Notes formmg part of the fmanmal statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 L e

“arising that are bevond the eontrol of the Company Such changes are reflected in the essumptlons when_
they oceur. : - S . . :

pan Defmed beneft plans '

_ :The cost af the deflned benefst plan and ether post»emplnyment bene’nts and the present value of such
obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various

. assumptions that may differ from actual deveiopments in the future. These include the determination of the .

h dlscount rate, future saiary mcreases and mortallty rates Due to the complexities mvolved inthe valuatlon

: _assumptsons are rewewed at each reportlng date
: Useful life ofass_ets :

'The Company reviews the useful life of assets at the end of each reporting period. Thls reassessment may
resuitin change in deprecratxon axpensein future penods . -

Provisions and cont_ingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be requnred to settle the obligation in respect of whsch @ rellable
-estsmate can be made : : : '

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence

of which wiii be confirmed only by occurrence or nor-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not

wholly within the control of the Company or & present obligation that arises from past events where it is

. either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settleor s relrable estimate of the amount.
"'cannot be made Contmgent Erabl ities are dzsclosed in the notes Contlngent assets are not recogmsed inthe /-
financial statements - - S

_Pro_vi_si_ons ancl__c_ontiﬂgent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
'Current versus non-current ciassificat’mn 5

. _The Company presents assets and llabtlttres in the balance sheet based on ctrrrent/ non-current Classmcatlon _ _-:_: ] '
_‘An asset is treated as current when it is: RN TR R R
e Expected to be realised orintended to be sold or consumed in norma% operetmg cyc!e SRR,
¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading RS o
¢ Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting penod or :
¢ -Cash or cash equivalent uniess restricted from bemg exchanged or used to settle a llablilty for at ieast S
twelve months after the reporting period . : : '

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A fiability is current when:

¢ ltis expected to be settied in normal operating cycle

¢ ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

. It is due to be settled within twelve meonths after the reporting period, or

There is no unconcl;tlonal rlght to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period
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Notes form:ng part of the fmanc;al statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 : AT

-: Cash and cash equwalents (for purposes of Cash ﬂow statement}

. '-Cash comprsses cash on hand (mcludmg cash in ATM cash in vault held wn:h Cash Replensshment Agenues
-{'CRA’) and remittances in transit) and demand depos:ts with banks. Cash eguivalents are short-term balances
{with an original maturity of three menths or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that

“are readily convembie mta known BAOLNTS of cnsh and whsch are subject to msxgmﬂcam nsk of cﬁaeges in o

value.,

_ Property, ptant and eqmpment

Property, p!ant and equapment are carﬂed at cost Eess accumu!ated depreuatnon / amortnsatlon aact
xmpalrment losses, if any, ‘The cost comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any

- dmpert duties and other taxes {other than those subsequently recoverabie from the tax authorities), any

. Pl&ﬂt and Mach:nery (Refer 1 below)

* directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its mteﬂded use and all mcadental expenses
incurred on me%eng the assetis feady for its mtended use. : IR S

When significant parts of propert_y, plant and egquipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
‘Company derecognises the replaced part, and recognises the new part with its own associated useful life and
itis depreciateéi accordingly only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with Kem will
flow to the entity and cost can be measured reliably. : s

..-Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/under
" development as at the balance sheet date and are camed at cost, compr;smg dlrect cost and reEated_
mc:dentalexpenses SRR IR e = - '

'The_ de_pr_e_ciabEe amo_unt for property, plant and equipment is the cost of the praperty, plant and equipment
" “or.other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value {wherever applicable). Depreciation on -

. property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the estimated useful '
lives. The, asset’s residual values, estimated usefel lives and methods of depreciation are rewewed at each o

fmancsal year emi and any change in esnmate |s accounted for on a pmspectwe basss

s Estumated useful Jwes of the assets are as fcllows

Property, plant and equipment R L - ‘Estimated Useful life of Assets ;' S

v _ATM&Cash Dnspensers [ '- f S 10years s B H
”'_— '_Other £quxpment & ‘accessories at -3t08years o S
. ATM Site (UPS, AC, Battery, VSAT)

- = Other General Plant & Machinery . . 3to 8 years
F e . Over the customer contract or term of the lease
- of the site whichever is lower

10 years

b. Leasehold improvements

c Furniture®

d. Office equipment* 5 years

€ Computers & Servers* 3to 6 years

“* On the above categories of assets, the depreciation has been provided as per useful [ife prescrlbed in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,

1. Inthese cases, the life of the assets has been assessed based on technical advice, taking into account the
nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history
of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support,
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Notes formmg part of the fmanc:a! statements
: for the year ended 31 Morch 2020 R
2 Property, plant and equlpment are eizmmated from financial statement elther on élsposa! or when retired -
. from actsve use. Losses arising in the case of retirement of property, plant and equipment and gains or =
. losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equ;pment are recogmsed in the Statement of Prof:t_ I
' and Loss in the year of occurrence. : '

8. %n‘tangeb!e assets o

U 'Intanglble assets are recogmzed only ifitis probabie that the future economic beneflts that are attrsbutable L
1o the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. - : :

. lntangible assets under 'development includes expenditure on software deveiopment eligible  for
capitalisation which are carned as iﬂtanglble assets under development where such assets are not yet ready, -
for their tntended use. . : : . G

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intapgible asset with a finite useful life are
're_viewed at {east at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the .
. amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. '

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for tmpatrment
whenever thereis an mdlcatlon that the intangible asset may be nmpalsed

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

] Sof‘twere and Applicatioo o | 3 to & years ] o

An lntangrble asset is de -recognised on, disposal, or wi’len no futere economic benefits are expected fromuse

or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recpgnition of an intangible asset afe measured as the difference :
‘between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recogmsed in the Statemeﬂt 3 _—
_of Proftt and Loss when the asset is derecogmsed oo : "

~h. impairment_ ofnon-f_inaecia!asset

'_'The carrying va!ues of assets / cash generating units (“CGU”} at eech balance sheet date are reviewed for

i, an intangible ass_et that is not yet avaiiable for use; and
fi. anintangible asset with indefinite useful lives.

if the carrying amount of the assets excead the estimated recoverable amount, impairment is recognised for
such excess amount. The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
unless the asset is carried at a revaiued amount, in which case any impairment loss of the revalued asset is
treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent a revaluation reserve is available for that asset.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the net seliing price and the value in use. Value in use is arrived at
by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor.

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other than a revalued asset) in
earlier accounting pericds no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversat of impairment loss is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount was previously charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of revalued assets such reversal is not recognised.
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“to the asset In determmmg faar vatue Jess costs of é:sposal recent market traﬂsactlons are taken lnto__._-' R

.account

"E’he Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are

“prepared separately for the Company as 2 CGU. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a

- signiticant peried. For ienger periods, a fong- term gfowth rate ;c calculated arzci apphed to prOJect future cash .

flows after the Signlﬂcant penod

L&ases

. The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) & lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a Rrght of
Use the asset or assets, even if that nght is not exphcvt!y speczﬂed inan arrangement

Lesses

. The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land, buildings and colocations spaces. The
-Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether: {i} the contract involves the use of an identified asset {ii} the Company

has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the iease and (au) o

_the Company has the ﬂght to direct the use of the asset

'.At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a mght of use asset {"ROU") and a

< eorresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which itis a tessee, except for leases with a term of

twelve months or less {short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value feases,

the Company recogmzes the tease paymems as an operatmg expense on a stranght ime basns cver the term_ :

.of the Iease

‘Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease

term. ROU assets and lease liabilities mc!udes these options when it is reasonably certain that they wm be

'exerased b

' '.Th_e r_Egh_t-of-u_Sé ésset_s are ihitia!iy'recogﬂizéé at_cdét, which cérﬁ_préses the initial amou'ntj of the lease liability
- adjusted for zny fease payments made at or prior 1o the commencement date of the lease plus any initial

direct costs less any lease incentives. They are su bsequeﬂtiy measured at cost less accumulated deprecaatmn .

and ;mpalrment losses.

Réght-of-use assets are ciepreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying ameunts may not be recoverable.
Refer to the accounting policies in note 2{h) Impairment of ron-financial assets.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments,
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. The Company uses return
on treasury bilfs with similar maturity as base rate and makes adjustments for spread based on the company’s
credit rating as the implicit interest rate cannot be readily determinable. Lease liabilities are remeasured with
a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether
it will exercise an extension or a termination option. '

ase liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet.
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Notes formmg part of the fmancnal statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 '

' Lessor
: -Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as'a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of
“the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract 1s céassmed
as a fmance lease All other leases are classmed as operatmg leases : Pl
CFor operating Ieases, rental mcome is recognized o & straight—line_pa_sis over the term of the relevant Jease. . _
g ;Employee benefits ; o '
Employee beneflts include prowdent fund gratmty, compensated absences and pe;formarace mcentwes T
N 'Short term emptoyment benefits
The uneliscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services
rendered by employees is recognised during the period when the employee renders the service. These
benefits inclyde compensated absences such as paid annual leave and performance mcentwes payable
“within twelve mcmths ' :

ii.  Post-employment beneﬁts

Contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit schernes are recognised as expenses when
; empioyees have rendered services efmtlmg themto the contnbut:ens -

For defined beneﬁt schemes in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is determined using
.. the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date
wxriwhich recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unzt ‘of emp!oyee beneﬂt ent:tlement .
and ‘measure each Lnit separately to bUEid up the fmal obhgatzon Sl et L

Remeasurements, compnsmg of actuamal gains and iosses, the effect of the asset cestmg (sf app%zcable),
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defmecf benef:t liability and the return en plan
assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit Ilaballty) are recognised
O immediately in the balance sheet with a correspondmg debit or credit to retained earnings through ..~
:other comprehenswe income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to _
.. the Statement of Profit and Loss In subsequent peﬂods Past service cost 1s recogmsed in the Statement o
'of Profit and Loss in the persod of plan amendment, . : : :
~Net Interest is ca%culated by app%ymg the elscount rate to the net defmed beneﬁt hablizty ar. asset

.The Company recognises _changes in service costs comprising of current service costs, past—serwce costs,
- gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settiements under employee benefit expenses in the
- Statement of Profit and Loss. The net interest expense ar mcome as recogmsed as part of f inance cost in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. : : '

“The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the
defined benefit obiigation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair
value of scheme assets. Any asset resuiting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the
present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme, B

iii.  Other long-term empioyment benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a llablilty at the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date.
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Notes formmg part of the fmancnai statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 SRR

: Revenue recognttion

: -'-Revenue is recogmsed upen. transfer of contrel nf promlsed products or- rendermg of servnces to the Lo

customers. Reven ue is recognised to the extent that it s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the.

. Company and the revenue can be reliably measured regardiess of when the payment is being made. Revenue L
- is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable excluding taxes. collected on behaif R
-ofthe gevemmeat and ns reduced fer estimated credrz notes and other snmular allowances R

'ﬁxed by RBI for White Label ATNE Busmess and number of transactaons / rate per tsansactaon as per contract o _
ora flxed monthiy pricef for services 1o certain brown label ATMs. POS enablement hosted core bankmg and R
3'__co—brandzng actlwtles at white Eabel ATMS are as pe:’ the contracts : R T R :

' .Accountmg treatment of assets aﬂsmg in course of sale of goods and serwces is set out below

: Imd.m!tetzemfwuemgé

Trade receivable represents the Company s right to an amount of consideration that is. uncondltlonal (s e,
only the passage of tlme is teqmred before payment of the consnderatlon is due} S :
Other income

a. Dividends from investments are recognized when the right to receive payment is estabhshed and no .
' sngmfncant uncertamty asto measurabttsty or collectability exnsts o

b., Interest income for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost is recorded on accrual basis.
Interest income is included in other income In the Statement of Profit and Loss, et

Taxatmn

1 Current lncome tax

s Current tax expense 13 determmed m accordamce wnth the provrs:ons of t?te lncome Tax Act 1961

Prowsnons for current income taxes and advance taxes paid In respect of the same j%}FISdICEIOI‘I are
_presented in the baiance sheet after offsettmg these balances on an assessment year basis. Current tax
-refating to jtems. recognlsed outside the Statement of Profit .and Loss is recognised outside the

-'Statement of . Profit and Loss. .Current tax items are recogmsed in catrelatlon to the uncﬁertymg L

--trartsactnon etther in other comprehenswe mcome or dlrectiy in equtty o

' 2._ eferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary dlfferences at the reporting
date between the tax base of assets and hab fities and their carrying amounts for fmanmal reportmg
purposes at the reporting date : L

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to alfow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probab]e that future taxable proflts WI“ allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered. :

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss {either in Gther

comprehensive income or in equity) is recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss. Deferred tax

items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in Other comprehensive income
_ordirectly in equity.
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Notes formmg part of the fmanc:al statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 iy

- liabilities are offset if such items relate to taxes on income Eewed by the same governmg tax ans and L
the Company has a legally enferceable r:ght for such set off : - R

no Fair_vafue__m_easuremen_t -

The Cempany measures fmancnal mstruments such as denvatlves and certain m»estment;, a fanr value at -
each balance sheet date . : . : _ S

'Fair velue Es the price that would be re'ceive‘d o sell a'n esset or paid t'o transfer a liability in an orderly
" transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair valug measurement s based on .- '
the presumptlon that the transactzon to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place erther h N

i In the prmc:pai market for the asset or Hability or = :
il in the absence of a prln(zlpal market, in the most advantageous mas’ket fcr the asset or Eiabi ity

_ The_ principa! or the mo_st edvant_ageo_us market must be accessible by the _C_ompany.

. The fair value of a financial asset or a isabjhty is measured usmg the assumptmn that market pammpants act .
in their economic best lnterest : :

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data is available to measure fair vaiue, maxlmlsmg the use of relevant observable mputs and mmlmlsmg the
use of unobservable inputs.

All_assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are _
- categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the Eowest le\rel lnput that 15__
: ssgn;fzcant to the fa:r value measurement as g who% : '_ : ERE = Ll

" E.evel 1 — |nputs are quoted pnces (unadjusted) in a;:twe markets for edent:cai assets or Ezablhtses : ;_-: n

Level 2 - inputs are other than guoted pnces mc[uded w;thln i.eve! 1 that are observable for the asset or - o
lxabittty, e:ther directly{l e. as pnces)ormdlrectly(l e. dersved from pnces) o B

' Levet 3 — inputs are not based on obsewable market data (unobservable mputs) Faar values are determmed
in whole or in part using a valuatmn model based on assumptlons that are neither supported by pnces from

For -&ssets and iiabiiities that are recognised in the _balance sheet on a recurring basis, .the _Company

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
-{based on the lowest Ieve! :nput that is stgmhcant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the enc€ of
gach reportmg peﬂod s :

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or hab:hty and the level of the falr value i’uerarchy as
‘explained above. : :

0. Foreign currencies

~ The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. ' ' ' ' '

Foreign currency transactions are converted into indian Rupees at rates of exchange approximating those
prevailing at the transaction dates or at the average exchange rate for the month in which the transaction
- . Foreign cuzrency monetary assets and Ilabsistles are outstanding as at the balance sheet date are
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Notes formmg part of the fmancnal statements
for the year. ended 31 March 2020 e

' Eammgs per share

Basm earnings per share is computed by dlwdmg the proflt / (loss) after tax atzrlbutab!e to eqmty shareholders o . '
' bythe wezghted average number of equity shares outstandmg durmg the year. - T A DS DRI

Diluted earnings per share is computed by célwdmg the profit / {loss) after tax as adjusted for dlwdend

interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive.

potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
. ‘earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares whlch couici have been lssaed on the R
: '-converszon of alldllutwe potentlalequ:tyshares s o ORI

'-'Financiai _instru_men_ts S

Financial assets and liabilities are récognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrurhent. Financial assets and liabiities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction

- gosts that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other
“ than financial assets and financial liabifities at fair value through profit or foss) are added to or dedacted from :
© ‘thefair value measured on initial recogmtzon of fmanma! asset or fmanczai habmty PO

Financi_al_ assets

i, Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are subsequeﬂtiy‘measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a
‘business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
- contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash ﬂows that are solely paymems_
~ohof pnnapai ané mterest on the prmcnpal amount outstarsdlng :

i -Fmam:tal assets at Fair Value Thruugh Other Comprehenswe Income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measared at fair value through Other comprehensive income if these fsnancnal assets
- -are held within 2 business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that -
; glve rise on. specified dates to solely payments of prmcspa! and mterest on the pﬂnmpaE amouni’_ :

iti. Fmam:lai assets at Fanr VaEue Through Prof‘ tor Loss (FVTPL)
- Financial assets are measureé at fajr value through profit or Ioss unless it is measured at amortlsed cost
. orat falrvalue through other comprehenswe income anvinjtial recogmt:on The transaction costs directily

> ‘attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and habllttles at falr value thmugh proftt or loss are T

g xmmedtatety recogmsed in proftt or loss.

iv. Derecognition
(A financial asset (or, where appficable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar fmancral
: assets} is prlman!y derecogmsed (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when -

a. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b. The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
cbiigation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement and either {a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The transferred asset and the assomated fiability are measured on a basis that reflects the ng?ﬁs and
obligations that the Company has retained,
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Notes formmg part of the f:nanmai statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 EER R

- Contsnuzng snvolvement that takes the form of 2 guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
~ the lower of the ongma! carrying amount of the asset and the mammam amdunt of ccnsmieratlon that
2 _the Ccmpany could be requ:fed to repay : : : : : Sl L

Impatrment of fmanc:al assets .
The Comper\y assesses nmpazrmenf based on expected credit Iasses {ECL) model to ghe follcswmg

a. F:nanceai assets ‘measured at amomsed cost L S
b Fmanc:al assets meacured at Fair Value through Other Comprehenswe lncome e i

_Expected credit Iosses arg measured through a Eoss allewance at an amount equal to the 12-month .
- expected credit fosses (expected credit losses that result from those defauit events on the fmancqal S
instrument that are possnb%e within 12 months after the repdrtmg date). " s

The Company fotlows ‘simplified approach’ for recognltlon of nmpatrment loss allowance on tfade

-recewables or cantract revenue recewables

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recogmses
impairment Joss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at reporting date. TR S

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment foss aliowance on the portfolio of trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated ané changes in the forward- Eooklng estnmates are .
analysed : - :

g For assessing expected credls losson a co* ect:ve besns, fsnanaal assets have been grouped on ”the bas;s ]
- of shared risk characteristics and basis of estimation may change durmg the course (}f time due to

change in nsic charactertstlcs

Fmanczai I;abifsttes _ T A
Fmancnal lleb:lmes are measured at amomsed cost usmg the effectwe mterest methad T T

R 'Loans and borrowmgs o - ST o
After initial recognition, interest- bear:ng loans and borrowmgs are subsequently measured a S

o Subsequent measurement : : .
B The measurement of' fmanmal isabllmes depends on the|r ctassnﬂcatmn as descnbed below: -

" amortised cost on accrual basls

1. Derecognition .

A financial liability is dereccgmsed when the obltgatlon under the kiability is dlscharged or cancelled
" or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The differerce in the respective carrying amounts is recogn:sed in
the statement of Statement of Profit and Loss. S S

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there i is an mtentmn o
settle on.a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. :
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A . 'Notes formmg part of the fmam:lal statements
o for the year ended 31 March 2020 R

' iii. : Derlvattve fmancnai instruments - Inltlai and subseqaent measurement RN :

e The Company uses derwatlve financial instruments, such as forward currency coatracts to hedge ItS
i 'forEIgn currency rzsks Such derlvatlve financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
. date on which a derivative contract is. entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.

Derivatives are carried as fmanmal assets when the falr value is pos;twe and as fmancual E|abllmes when o

R thefairualuels negau\.re RN

:New and amended standards =

' Effectwe 1 Apr;l 2019 the Company adopted !ND AS 116. "Leases" and appiled the standard to aJl lease
" contracts existing onl Aprz? 2019 using the modified retrospective method Consegquently, the Company .
- ‘recorded the iease liability at the_present value_of the lease payments discounted at the incremental
‘borrowing rate and the ﬁght of use asset at its carrying amount equal to the lease liability on initial appiication
date, but discounted. at the Company's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
~Comparatives as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and
therefore will continue to be reported ursder the accountmg pollmes included as part of our Annual Report
for year ended 31 March 2019 - : s

Upon adoption of IND AS 116, the Company applied a single recognition and measusement approach for ali -
leases except for short-term leases and Reases of low-value assets '

On transition, the adoptlon of the new standard resulted in recognition as below:

{Tlaecs)

Balance sheet B T S "Asat
Lo ' 1 April 2019
Right of Use assets AR ©5,368.01
Otherequity 0 00 et ' 1,491.06
1 Right-of-use liabilities B ' ~7,858.07

-+ The foléowing is the summary of .practical expedients elected on initial applicatior&: .
1. 'Apptled a smgle dtscount rate toa portfoho of Ieases of 5|m1§ar assets in su’nllar economlc eﬂv:ronment_
' with a similar end date, .- :

jii._: “Applied the exemption n'ot to recognize rlght of -use assets and Ezabséttles for leases wrzh Eess than 12_ o

- o 'months of lease term on the date of initial application and for low-value leases, .
- Y Excdluded the imtlal d;rect costs from the measurement of the nght of -Use asset at the date of imtlal
T :'apphcation ' : - ;

iv. - Applied the practical expedsent to graﬂdfather the assessment of whsch transactlons are Eeases
Accordingly, IND AS 116 is applse& oniy to contracts that were prevnous%y tdentlfled as leases under End
AS17. . S . ;

v, The Cempany appiies the short- ierm Iease recogmtlon exemptlon to its short -term Eeases of property
{i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option}. Lease payments on short-term feases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense an a straight-tine basis over the lease term.

vi, Used hindsight in determining the fease term where the contract contained options to extend or
' terminate the Jease.
vii. Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of initiaf application

The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at 1 April 2015 is 8.67%.
Recent accounting pronouncements

" tandaﬂis issued but not yet effective
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i Notes formmg part of the fmanc:ai statements e
R for the year ended 31 March 2020 . i DK

3 Praperty,piantand eqmpment : R RS S
N (Tinfacs)

" 'Plantand . Office . . Computers ' Furniture . ° leasehold = .Total

Machinery . Equipment . . andfFixtures Improvements ...

Balance as at 1 April 2{313 S U58,608.94 '79.73 .. .1,08624 . 18568 s 15 624, 79 76 ,585.39.
PAddiions o amoa90 Do e 1068 0T e Y 1,001.29 .-.'__-2,2_34._52_
Disposals o g2esey) o . Lo (e
Assets written off {1,174.88) . {31.26) ¢ {0.37) ¢ {(170.03) - (3,146.91) - {4,523.55)
1| Balanceasat31March2019 . 50,387.73 . . 4847 109650 1566  14,479.17 66,027.53
Additions - . 91238 D18 101 - - 0519063 . 1,433.16

| Disposals C3E24.99) o oLl T T (3,624.90)
g Assetswnttenoff o (752.16} . - - {1,604.49) {2,356.65}
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - 46,922.94 - " 48.63 1,097.51 15.66  13,394.31 61,479.05
Accumulated amortization - R G e
Balance as at 1 April 2018 2843668 7551 73634 18569 ‘11,055.04 40,4896
Depreciation = - ' 8,240.82 203 . 9682 (L34} . - 3,037.22 11,375.75

i Disposals FEEUE R {8,166.44) Lo - Shheee T Tl (8,166.44)
Assets written off ' {1,137.63) (31.26) {0.37) (17003} - {3,143.85) (4,483.14)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 27,373.43 46.28 832.79 14.52 10,948.41  39,215.43

| Depreciation L 794084 0.95 19180 0 0.20 7 1,982.95 - .10,016.94
: Désp_g_s'ais G {719.53) e R R SN P S o lhmen T, 53)
Assets written off - '(3,557.94) o L e {1,595.33)  (3,153.27)
Balance as at 31 March 2020~ 31,036.90 ~ 47.23 92469 1472 - 11,336.03 43,359.57
Carrving st T e TR T
Balance as at 31 March 2018 - °23,01430 . ..2.13 26371 114 353076 26,812.10

Balance as at 31 March 2020 - ©  15,886.04 140 0 a7zez 0 o0& zoss za 18,119.48

4. _Rig_liz_tgb_fuse Asséfs SR

a8 . (?’m lacs}

-1 Particulars EERENEE " Amount
Balance as at 1 Aprit 2019 . 6,368.01
Additions - s 8,942.16
Termination o {207.40}
Depreciation {3,7859.11)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 11,313.66

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortisation expenses in
the statement of Proﬂt and Loss.
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L Notes formmg part of the flnancsal statements
) for the year. ended 31 March 2020 BRI ..

' :_ 5. intanglbie assets S

' '{?in!acs} L

Computer
> Software
Y Cost “: _ :
Balance asatl Apm 2018 __5_{)'1,35 _
Additions TR
1 Balance as at 31 March 2019 : 501.35
Additions .
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - 501.35
| Accumulated amortization . SR AR
'] Balance as at 1 Aprif 2018 *..380.60
1 Amortisation Expense 43.81
Balance as at 31 March 2019 424.41
: Amortisation Expense o '33.29
Balanee as at 31 March 2020 457.70
"+ tarrying amount o R
Balance 2s at 31 March 2019 76.94

Balance as at 31 March 2020

43.65

6. .Other financial assets

& in lacs)
o Asat o Asat
S S . 31March 2020 .- 31 March 2019 .
-Secuntydepostts S Lol
' ‘Unsecured, considered good _ 1136876 - . :1,628.07 |
_Uns_ecu__r_ed con_s;derad dc_vu_btfui JLia 10298 ¢ 46168
A B . 1,471.74 0 2,089.75
Less: Allowance far doubtfulsecunty éepos:ts {102.98) ""'(461.68} :
sl . Tutai (A) 1,368.7¢6 1,628.07 :
B. 'Current ' R R
'j_Advance to venders and contractors S R e
Unsecured consudered good 1_,949_.99_ - 24108

Unsecureé coras:dered doubtful O -'599.01 " 7.63
_ . 254900 © 24871

Less: Allowance for doubtful advances : '(599.61) ""'(7.63)

' Total (B) 1,949.99 241.08

(A+8B) 3,318.75 1,869.15

7. Income tax assets {net)

{Z in locs)

As at o As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Advance tax {net of provision for taxes) 1,274.32 1,672.84

Total 1,274.32 1,672.84
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for the year ended 31 March 2020

8 Otherassets .

R‘ in !acs}. o

2,009.85 S

. As at As at
1 March 2020 - 31 Mar_ch 2018
A, -Noncurrent X : . LA
| 2. Prepaid expenses — Unsecured, Consxdered good _-1_0.28__ 3837
b. .-Capl_ta!A_dvances_—i_)nse_cured_,_Co_n_s:derecﬁgood B - 471
i ' " Total (A} 10.28 07 43.08
I a  Taxes recoverable (net) - Considered good . 1,378.61 . " . 945,05 |
b.  Advance to Vendors e L EEEN R
Unsecured, considered good 319.16 471.15
Unsecured, considered doubtful 118.1% 118.17
' o 437.35 589.32
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances (118.19) {118.17)
319.16 471.15
¢.  Prepaid expenses -~ Unsecured, Considered good 250.60 - 542,66
d.  Other receivables — Unsecured, Considered good 6.57 g .
e. Interest Receivable ~ Unsecured, Considered good 3.59 © 238
f.  Advancesto Employees Unsecured, Considered good 1.76 5.52
Total (8) 1,960.29 1,966.77
(A+B) 1,970.57
9, Trade receiva_bles T
: ' ﬁ in lacs)
As at - ' As at
e 31 March 2020 . 31 March 2019
- Unsecured (including unbilled receivables) ' S '
| s Considered good Lo 2,573.41 -_-.4,{_3_35.0:1__
b. . Considered doubtful 2,597.03 2,454.73
Sl : . 5,170.44 . 6,489,74 |
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts {expected credit loss {2,597.03) (2,454.73} _
alfowance) (Refer note 36 (b)) '
' Total 2,573.41 4,035.01
16. Cash and cash equivalents
Z in lacs)
As at As at
"31March 2020 31 March 2019
a.  Balances at ATM 24,897.00 36,782.27
b.  Remittance in transit 1,707.55 11,728.61
c. Cashinvault 3,234.77 2,867.14
d. Balances with banks 5,626.22 714.72
Total 35,465.54 52,092.74
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11 Bank balances {other than note 10 above)

TATA Commun cat:ons Payment Solut:ons le:ted

o R‘ in Idcs)

: Other bank halances
Restncted bank deposits (Refer Note i below)
Tatat '

31 March2020 . 31 March 2015 .

CAsat uAsat

1700 T 1700

'17.00 S T 1700

i. ?‘ 17 oo Iacs {2019 ?‘ 17.00 Iacs) represeﬁts the amount withheld towards legal matters.

12 Equ:tv share capltal

(? in lacs}

Asat L Asat
. o 31 March 2020 - 31 March 2019
a. Authorised: R ' BN
1,000,000,000 (2019: 1,000,000,000) Equity Shares of 10 each - 100,000.00 - 100,000.00 .
{Note a and b} ' : R
110,06,00,000{2019: 11,00,000,000} 12% Convertibie Preference 110,600.00 - 110,000.00
_Shares of face value? 10/ each '
210,000.00 210,000.00
b. lssued Subscrihed and Paid up: _ TR
987,091,784 (2019: 987,091 734) Eqmty Shares of 2‘ 10 each fu%iy 198,709.18 - '98,709.18
cpaidup o o : A e oo ool
} B Total 98,709.18 9870918 | ... .

LB Number“of sha_rés _héld_by each sha:eholder ho'lding more than 5% of the issued share capital:

b. - 'Terms/mghts attached ta shares

' The Company has oniy one class of equn:y shares havmg a face value of ¥ 10 per share Equlty shareholders
are ent:tled to one vote per share at any Geﬂeral Meetmg of Shafehclders : : D

in the event of hqmdat:on of the Company, the holders of equlty shares wnII be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The dlstrlbutlon will be in proportlon to

the number of equuty shares held by the shareholders,
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SR Notes formmg part of the fmancaa! statements
ol for the year ended 31 March 2020 - SR :

13, Other eqmty

R‘ r'n. !éﬁs )

_____ CoAsat Asat
“31March 2020 .31 March 2019
] a. _Retamed eammgs _ {1,33,749.51} _'(1,2_1,923.18) _
1 b -Other comprehenswe income (Refer note 1) 2469 4875
c. - iSecurities premium {Refer note ii) 45,490.81 .. i4_5,49_0.8:_t__ _
d. ﬁContrabutlon fmm parent company {Refer note iii} 5,496.42 5,496.42 R
' “Total : (82,737.59) (70,891.20) s
i. ~Other C_omprehe_nsi_ve income
'-Thls represents the cumulatwe gams and losses arising on remeasurement o§ defmed emplc}yee beneflt
ii.  Securities premium
it is the additional amount which shareholder are paid for issued sha{es‘that was in excess of the face vaiue
of those shares. This premium can be used to write off equity related expenses and issue of bonus shares,
i Contrihution from parent company

‘The interest on the debt component of the preference shares is disclosed as contnbutlon from parent IR .
: co-npany on conversion to equlty shares - : : o '

14. Provisions .

(? in facs)

‘Asat Asat

31 March 2020 . 31 March 2019,
g A’. -.Non cun‘ent R R T TP

_ "Prowsmn for employee beneﬂts{Refer note:below) B N
. a.. Provasmn for gratulty AR 234.:18 _3.2_02.9;6 :
b Prov;s:on for compensated absences ; 110757 110637 |

' ~ Total (A) 341.75 314.33

B. Current } G
Provision for employee benefit (Refér note i below)

a. Provision for compensated absences 13.51 12.81

. Total (B) 13.51 12.81

(A+B) 355.26 327.14

i. The provision for empioyee benefits includes gratuity, annual leave and leave entitlements accrued and
compensatxon claimed by employees. For other disclosures, refer note 30 {ii & iii).
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15 Other Ilabllatles

TATA Commumcatlons Payment Solutmns lelted

1A Zi‘iowcurreet
' -Accrued employee benefits

AR Tofal(A)
4B, Current Sl ' :
a . Accrued payrolt
b Statutoryllablht:es . : . .
| e '.Advance against assets held for saie* '
1d: -Otherllabllltles ' : -~
o * Total (B)

{A+B)

o As 3‘ L As at -
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
30.71 31_59
o T _81.53_
451.89 .
‘ f3'51_:47 o

11,00000
17.40 19.04
1820.76 916.51

185147 :

¥ Pursuant to termination of memorandum of understanding (MOU) {and non execution of asset transferred
agreement} entered for sa!e of certain assets, the Company has refunded the advance meney subsequent to

- the year end

16. Borrowings

R‘ in iacs}

Lo Asat . Asat
NE A 31 March2020. 31 March 2019_ _
Current ' : ' R '
Loans repayable on demand (from banks) SR :
2. Bank overdraft : : : B 206,25 22 478 14__' _
{Rate of mterest pet annum: 8 3{)% to 9 20%, 2019: 8 25% to TR :
9.20%) : L S HEERIEE . _
b Working capltal demand ioan G _ '31,30_0_0() o 23 000 QQ
{Rate of mterest 7.7%to 9 15%; 2019: 8 45%) S S T
otal " 32,006.25 : --45,478.14 s
17. Trade and other payables Ce .
' o X in lacs)
As at U Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
A Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 30.65 429.43
(Refer note 34) :
: ) 30.65 429.43
B Total outstanding dues of creditors etﬁef than micro enterprises
and small enterprises
i. Trade payables 9,606.04 10,417.72
il. Payable to related parties 1,056.66 1,876.25
- {1 1066270 12,293.97
P ASEoN Total (1+1) 10,693.35 - %,723.40
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s S "for the year ended 31 March 2020

19

20,

_R_lght~cf-use I:abziatl_e§ i

“Rin {aés}

A HNon-current -

: _ As at_. Rt Asat
. _'31 March 2020 : 1 March 2019

8,219.33

'R_ightof use liability : L )
| .  Total (&) 3,219.33 -
5. curent Gt Sy
* Right of use liability 419081
o Total (B) 418081 .
~ (A+B) 12,410.14 -
Other financial liabifities -
. T inlucs)
_ . Asat " As at
‘31 March 2020 . 31 March 2019,
Current o R PRI
a.  Capital goods R
i. Other - 819.68 1,22024
i1, Payable to related partles 18.45 S :36.11
| b. -Customer deposit S 1.80 L _--'.1_._8_0
| . . Accrued interest . : S 12,50 . L6945
| d.osFair vaiue of Foz’e;gn currency farward conteacts - e .03 o ';-:Q._(_}l _
| e Other payables T 0.34 - 0.94
: Total 7’85280  1,328.55%
e {?J‘n facs)
. Yearended .- Yearended .
: <31 March z_nz'o 31 Marci‘l 2019
| a. Interest on income tax refund " 98.88
b. Foreign exchange loss {net) (4.86) -
¢ Provision/Liabilities no longer requlred wratten back ©21.84 .0 ¢
1d profit/ (ioss) on sale of Assets ISR 142.92
e.  Others 12.29
Total 271.07

1,235.08
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for rhe year ended 31 March 2020

' '21. _Operat_ing a_nd other expense _' '

{f in lacs}

: ‘

A _-_Yearendect_- _f-"""_{ear_é_r:ide_d_ ;
" 31 March 2020 . 31 March 2019 -
a "'Network cost 4,131.29 1073356
b. = Cash management fees 7,640.81 . 0 9,273.61
c. . Caretaker charges .- 569,52 340.88
d. . :lLease rental R T
4, Site rent charges 952.86 - '5,718.40 .
ii. Rent for hired building 53933 . 474.53
e Electricity expenses 2,048.67 2,048.73
f. Consumables -180.39 . 198,02
g . Cashhandling loss 1,730.46 .. 385.04
A, Repairs and maintenance 5,135.58 _ 5,931.08
| Legat and professional fees 708.22 - 735,74
j- Services rendered by agencies - 1,736.11 1 2,537.46
k. Rates and taxes h 48.89 39.09
i . Travelling expenses 367.32 465.08
m. . Advertising and pubhmty 124.61 8138
n. Insurance 229,85 :158.36
o. . . Loss/{Gain} on write off or sale of property, plant and 4178 o '._-'40.41_ '
.+ equipment and mtanglble assets(net) : L] EUE
p. . “Baddebts il e 8048
g Aflowance for dcubtfuitrade recelvables 114229 0 049215
r. Allowance for doabtful advances 232,70 '_ .368.25
s.  Telephone expenses ' o 27.81 15043 |
o Prmtmg, postage and statlonery _ S30071 : 3 '.'_2_2.37 :
1w o Managemeat fees WLA 183.81 - :f 5' ‘_'_."2_(}7.76
1w Other expenses (refer notelbe{ow} 78416 627.25
B ' Total 24,591.27 ~ 32,324.88 |
Other expenses include auditor's remuneration as follows:
% in lacs)
"Year ended Year ended
31March 2020 31 March 2019
Auditor’s remuneration and expenses
fexcluding goods and service tax)
a. Audit fees 16.50 15.00
b. Tax Audit fees 3.30 3.00
c. Other professional services 3.03 2.92

ii.

QOperating and other expenses includes an adjustment on account of liabitities no longer required written

back pertammg to prior years,

23
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TATA Commumcatmns Payment Solutlons L:mlted :__:_

" 23. Finance costs

Notes formmg part of the flnanaal statements S
for the year ended 31 March 2020 n

22, Employee benefnt expense e
- (? in lacs)

" Yearended .- Year ended

31 March 2020 - 31 March 2019

|2 saloriesandrelatedcosts o oag249 261779

b. _Co_ntribu_ti_ons_toproyidentandother_fands_{Refer_not_e?:())‘ chl T 143,78 13979
¢. - Staff welfare expenses . i) L 12637 . 94.48

Total T T 2,762.64 2,852.06 | .

I(? in locs)

. . Yearended ' *:Year ended.

. 31March2020 . 31 March 2019

a. Interest on bank overdraft L : © 526.57 . 1,839.87
b. interest on Working capital demand ioan R . 2,579.18 _ 95.60
1c  Interest on commercial papers* - - ' - o - . 89212
d.  Gthers o R 2346. 22.33
e. Interest on ROU liahility - 882.95 -
e | Total 4,012.16 2,849.92

: o lnterest on commercnal paper for the year ended March 31, 2019 pertains to commercna? papers nssued and
. redeemed dunng the year : : S :

.24. _Dep_regl_atipn a_nd_ amomsat:on expense
SEERIEREE SRRt e . . leacs}
¢ Nearended - Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

a. :_'Depreuatson for the year on property, plant and equlpment o ) 10,016.84 . ": o _'13,__,3__?_5775_

"{Refer note 3} SRR Ul s L R e

b. - -Depreciation for the year on nght to-use assets {Refer note 4) : CB78941 S iy
Amortisation for the year on intangible assets {Refer note 5) 33.29 ‘ 43.81

Total : 13,839.34 11,419.56

25. Staff cost optimisation

As part of its initiative to enhance the long-term efficiency of the husiness, during the current year the Company
undertook organisational changes to align to the Company’s current and prospective business requirements. These
changes involved certain positions in the Company becoming redundant and the Company has wntten back¥8.99
facs (2019: incurred a cne- tnme charge T 18.11 lacs) e '

26. Deferred taxes

The Company has restricted recognition of deferred tax assets resulting from the carry forward tax losses and other
timing d:fferencas to the extent of deferred tax llabllltses, as the company has accumulated tax fosses and the
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Notes formmg part of the fmanuai statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 R

27 Unrecogn:sed deductlhie temporary filfferences, unused tax Iosses and unused tax credlts '

(? in Iass)

. Deductible remporary differences, vnused tax iosses and unused
. tax credits for which no deferred tax assets have been recogmsed
:- are attributable to the fai!owmg _ ' D

SN . Asat UAsat
. 31 March 2020 }31 M_arch 2019

a _Business loss 0 f A _._35,370.95_._._;_ '_.”_36_,0_2_3._80_

b. 'Unabsorbeddeprecuatmn R RN SRS PR R L82,776.56 . 47,431.80

‘The carried forward losses will expire as below

Total =~ 7 89,646.61  83,455.60

" Particulars

a. Business losses

. 2028

: Expira;ti_on _o_f Iosses

:Between FY 2021 to

Unlimited

b.  Unabsorbed depreciation

. 28. Segment reporting

The Board of Directors of the Company constitute the Chief Operating Decision Makers {“CODM”} which allocate
resources to and assess the performance of the Company. The Company is engaged in end-to-end ATM
deployment, end-ta-end POS enablement, hosted core banking, end to end financial inclusion and card issuance
-and related managed services, switching services to banking sector. Considering the nature of the Company's
business and operations, there are no other reportable segments in accordance with the requirements of Indian
: Accountlng Standard 108- 'Operating Segments’ prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further,
- ~the Company provudes services on%y in !ﬂdsa and accordmgly, no dlsciosares are requlred under geographlcai _

segment reportmg

- 28. .Eaméng_s p_er shar_e_ S

(? in !acs}

Net Loss after tax used sttributable to the equity shareholders (A}

Asat . U Asat

3 March 2020 : 3}. March 2019_
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: (10,584.37} (12,521.69)

1 Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year =~ 98,70,91,784 98,70,91,784

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year {B) 98,70,91,784 98,70,91,784
Basic and diluted earnings per share (¥ per equity share of ¥ 10 each)

(A/B) (1.07) (1.27)




Notes formmg part of the fmancnai statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

.30, Empiovee Benef ts .

TATA Communlcatlons Payment Solutlons Lfmlted

o Prowdent Fund

-The Company makes conmbutnon wwards Prowdent fund under a defined fcntr;butson retrrement benef:t

*this Scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to fund the benefits.

‘There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (5C) judgement on Provident Fund
dated February 28, 2019. As a matter of caution, the Company has made a prowsaon ona prospectwe bas;s .

. or part thereof in excess of six menths, Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The cost of

These plans typ;cally expcse the Company to actuarial nsk such as interest rate nsk and salary r:sk

interest ra_tg flﬁk P ) S discount rate based on government bonds. If bond

“The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuanal valuations were as follows

Deﬁned Contnhutlon Fian L

plan for employees. The Provident Fund is administered by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Under -~ ©
Having regard to the contribution made and return on the same, the Company does not expect any def;cuency_ '
in the foreseeable future There has also been no such deficiency since the mceptlon of the Fund '

Prowdent fund contﬂbuttons amounting to ¥ 1(}9 74 lacs (2019 4 104 25 lacs) have been charged to the i
Statement of Proflt and Loss under contnbut:ons to prowdent and other fur:ds (Refer note 22) o

from the date of the SC order,

Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity

The plan provides for [ump sum payments to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or

on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary for each completed year of service

providing benefits for defined henefit schemes is determined using the Prmected Unit Credlt method wnth
actuarial valuatlons bemg camed out at each Balance Sheet date : : -

The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a

~yields fall, the defmed benefit obﬁgatson wsEE tend to
increase
Higher than expected increases in salary w]l!
increase the defined beneﬂs obizgatton )

Saiary risk

The most recent actuarial valuatmn ofthe defmeé beneﬂt abhgatlon were carned out as at 31 March 2020 L
by Eiﬂ accred;ted actuary. ' R : R

As at ' As at
31 March 2020 . 31 March 2018

Principal Actuarial assumptions

Biscount rate 6.60% 7.30%
Salary Escalation Rate 7.00% 7.00%
Whthdrawal rate

Less than 5 years 15% 15%
5 years and more 8% 8%

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market vields of Government of india securities as at the Batance
Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

The estimates of future compensation cost considered in the actuarial valuation take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors,
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_Notes formlng part of the fmanc:al statements NN
: for the year ended 31 March 2020 RIEDA

Amoants recognlsed in the statement ef proﬂt and ioss ln respect of these deﬂned heneflt plans are as E
follows__ : B . . :

(?'m Icrcs) o
Asat : U hsat L
31 March ?ﬁZG_ o 31March 2019 ¢

'£xpensesrecogmsed in thestatement ofproﬁtand Eoss i : REANSE AR
a. - Currentservicecost . -0 O e e 3276 3_4_.2_6:.-

1b. - Pastservice cost T e R e e TR s
jc Interestcost PR B R R 13.71 13.58 |

Components of defi ned benef‘ t costs recognized in the CaLT T ABAT L 47.85
Statement ofProﬂt and Loss : : S RO T A

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability

a.  Actuariaf (gains) / losses arising from Defmed beneﬁt : : 3281 Ty 326
obligation assumption changes SR e LT e
b.  Actuarial {gains} / losses arising from the changes in ' 7.25 T (8.43)
' experience adjustments
Components of defined benefit costs recogmzed in other 008 T {5.17)

comprehensive Income

The details in respect of the um‘unded amounts recognised in the halance sheet for these defmed benefnt
schemes are as under

& inlocs)

‘Asat . o Aca* |

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1

o e {Unfunded) . {Unfunded) -

i Amount recognized in the balance sheet _ : [EREEE IS TR RU IR I o
Liability at the end of theyear .~~~ = . R 234.18 207.96

Net liability in the balance sheet S 23418 - .. 207.96

Non-current provision {Refer note 15A) S R

ft. - Change in the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO} C RN

Present value of DBO at the beginning of the year . 207.86 .197.00
Current service cost : ' 32.76 .- 34.26
Interest cost : 13.71 1358
Liability transfer in/{out} from/to other Company {6.31) {2.50}
Amount recegnized in Other Comprehensive income 20.06 (5.17}
Benefits paid ) (34.00} (29.22)
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 234.18 207.96

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 is as
shown below

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, salary
escalation rate and withdrawal rate. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting pericd, while
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Notes formmg part of the fmancna! statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 LR
1 D:scount rate _' : -_: E D :_. e .
RN '(‘? in Iacs}
e Asat i As at
S 31 March 2020, 31 March 2019
Effect on DBO due te 1% increase L {17.95) 5 '_ '(15.50) _
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease 20.59 17.72 L
2 Sa!a_ry escalation rate L SR
S SR ' (?mlacs}
N CAsat U As at .
31March 2020 31 Ma.rc.h_ 2019
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase 18.05 1624
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease {16.60) (14.72) -
“3.  Withdrawal rate ' ' .
(¥ in lacs)
DR : ‘As at -  Asat
o 31 March 2020 . '33 March 2019_ |
Effect on DBO due to 5% increase ' '{0.50) 1.81
Effect on DBO due to 5% decrease 0.21 (4.22} .
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual changs in the defined
‘benefit obligation as it is uniikely that the change in assumptnons would occurin Jsoiatmn of one another as
some of the assumptmns may be cora’elated SRR S
Fu rthermore, in preseating the abnve _sensit__ivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation
has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the
Same as that applled in calculating the deflneé benefit obhgatlon habmty recogmzed in the balance sheet
: There was no change in the methods and assumptnons used in prepaﬂng the sens:t:wty analysns from prlor ‘
years.. _ RS AN SRR
Maturity Prof‘ie af defmed benef’t pian R R EE S R
{¥inlacs)
s : - As at
' ' 31 March 2020
23.30
T 22.24
24.29
26.50
29.31
192.32

March 31, 2021
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2023
. March 31, 2024
. March 31, 2025
March 31, 2026 to March 31, 2030
There has been no change in the process used by the Company to manage its risks from prior years

s e a0 oo

lil.

Leave plan and compensated absences
Leave unavailed of by eligible employees may be carried forward/ encashed by them/their ﬂommees in the
.event of death or permanent disablement or resignation, subject to a maximum carry forward/ en

D Ieave for 60 days and 45 days in case of employee joining after 1 January 2020.
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' "Notes formmg part of the fmanc:al statements
_ for the year ended 31 March 2020 . R

The liabitity fer compenséted absen'ces as atthe year- -end isT121.07 acs (2019:T119.18 Jacs) as showh under
1+, non-current provisions ¥ 107.56 iacs {2019: ¥ 106.37 lacs) and current provisions Z° 13.51 lacs (2019:%12.81 - -
“lacs). Compensated absences expenses amounting to ¥ 24.65 lacs (2019: ¥ 9.79 lacs) have been chargedto -

. _' the Statement of Proflt and Loss under salanes and reiated ¢osts in note 22 "Emp!oyee Beneﬂt Expenses

31 Reiated party transacttons e g

i Names of reEated parttes and nature of reiattonshlp

o Category of related parties
1 Holding Company == '

2 Fellow Subsidiaries™

3 Associate of Holding Company*

4 Controlhng parties & is
-afﬁ]lates @

Names
'Tata Commumcat:ons le|ted

. _Tata Communications Fransformation Services L:mlted :

" Tata Communication {kreland) Limited
Tata Communicaticn (UK} Limited :
Tata Communications {Canada} Limited
Tata Communications {(Americaj Inc.
Tata Communications (Netherlands) B.V.
Tata Communications (Middle East) FZ-LLC
Tata Communications [nternational Pte Limited

STT Global Data Centers India Private Limited .

' TRIL Enfopark lested .
: Tata Consultancy Serv:ces Lsmlted
Tata Teleservices Limited
Titan Company Limited .- :
.. Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited
© Neico Limited (w.e.f 28.05.2018) ERT o
S Vortex Engmeermg Private erlted {w.e.f28.05. 2018)
Tatanet Services Limited (w,e.f 28,05,2018) - :

:_ The ind:an Hotels Company Lfmited {w ef28 0. 2018)

- Vpltas L[mlted {w.e.f28.05.2018) .

"The Tata Power Company Limited {w ef28 0s. 2018) S '

- Tata Capital Housmg Finance Limited
-: Fata Capital Financial Services Limited
“Tata Motors Lmited :

*Where transactions have taken place / there are balances

@ On Moy 28, 2018, Toto Sons Private Limited {'TSPL’) and its whoily owned subsidiary, Panatone Finvest
Limited {‘Panatone’), increased their combined stake in TCL to 48.90% there by gaining de-facto control as
per ind-AS. Accordingly, the Holding Company has clessified TSPL and Panatone as “Controlling Entities” and
disclosed TSPL, its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates as the ‘Controlling parties and its affifiates’,
effective this date. The Company had disclosed TSPL, its subsidiaries and its joint ventures as ‘Affiliates of
Holding Company’ in the previous year. -

# Reimbursement made of expenses incurred by related parly for business purpose of the Company, or
reimbursement received for expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of a related party shall not be

deemed related party transactions.
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S Notes formmg part of the fmanc&al statements
e for the year ended 31 March 2020 o o

B ii. Summary of transact:ons wnth related parttes

bt (? in lacs)

‘company & its - subsidiaries
- ‘associates .

Revenue from cb_eratiqns _

Shared service recovery o ol oD D
' 11563 - 2411

] Operating and other expenses

Networkcost .~ & 1 N >, 645.39 -

692.05

“{ Rent on hired building B ©.834.12
' 450.99

| Services rendered by agencies : 369.70 . 15.25
' ' 376,06 " 16.92
© | Siterent charges

1Telephone éxpens_es

Other expenses

AMCs and Repairs & Maintenance

Particulars _' Sl UHolding o Fellow "

“Controlling
_i'iaftles & |ts : .. o
affiliates

13.10

15

- 216.43

164.28

1.40

1,43
(108} -

1.12
1533

15144

o Total

case|

861.62
- 856.33

534.12
452.39

.. 384.95
. 39258,

2143
o (108}

142
1533
16.68 .

151.44
155.26
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e Notes formmg part of the fmancn_al statements
E A for the year ended 31 March 2020 ' - -

B 'Eéi. Ba!ances wrth related partnes asat31 March 2020

. 2 : & in locs)

P._art_icuiars- w0 Holding - .. Fellow © - Controlling - Total
R T N ' company & its . subsidiaries parties &its © i
associates .- o affllaates e

| Trade and other payables :* . " gg3 323 3183 -141.302_3_1- 1,056.66
HR R N ' 166830.-" L1782 019003187625

Other ﬁnahda.is. “ab“:it.i.e.s e S = .4: e L S g .. 1845 g 1845
Trade Receivables = = . . g '0;09 1385 0 1531
B R - 1082 . 008 1090

| Right-of-use liabllitles ~ . - 11.44 . o S0 1144
4 current : SRR L : T

| Right-of-use liabilities~ ~~ . 12.40 ' ' S 12.80
Non-current -, “ £ R g | IR FES

Gthercu'rrent_é'sséts PO RN : Lo 135 'i_gs_

~#Amounts in jtalics denote previous year figures

."3_2_. Operating lease arrangements ...~ "

As lessee

: o The Company has Fease contracts for :mmevabte propertnes across various loeataons used in ItS operamons
" ‘Such leases generally have lease terms between 3 to .10 vears, Generally, The Company is restricted from
'asmgnmg and subleasing the leased assets. There are several lease contracts that mciude extensmn ané
termination opt;ons and vanabte lease paymer&ts R : . R :

_The Com_pany also has certain_ _leas_es w%th_lease_ terms of 12 months or less,
The_.- fo_%iowing is _the movement in Rig_ht-of—use liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2020:

(% in lacs}
Particulars _ : . -Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2019 7,855.07
Additions ' 8,942.14
Finance cost accrued during the year 882.24
| Payment/Reversal of Right-of-use liabilities {5,043.93)
Liabilities settied against leased assets terminated (230.08)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 12,410.14
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The foifewmg is the break up of current ané nen*current nght»of«use habrhtaes as at 31___Merch 2020 B e

. _.f.jTATA Commumca‘uons Payment Solut;ons L:msted

| : {’? in lacs)
! Pamc_uiars_ i - Amount
| Current liability 14,190.81
Non-current liability 8,215.33
Balance as at 31 March 2020 . 12,410.14

: The ta ble below prov;des detarts regardlng the contractual matunties of nght of—use Elabllrtles as at 31 March
2020 onan undlsceunted ba5|s RS : i

' R m facs}

: As at
31 March 2020

Due not later than one year - - B = -‘4,992.3.0

1 Due later than one year but not later than five years SUN 8,177,85

Later than f:ve years RN _ . s | 1,505.45
s ' 14,675.40

The Campany is confident that it shall meet the right-of-use liabilities obligation as and when they fall due,

- 33. Contingent liabilities and commitments
1. Contingent liabilities
: ' (? in Ia{:s)
: '-As_a_t - Asat |
© 31March2020 31 Ma_f;h_z_og,s_ _

ia '-"C_I_aims_ for taxes on.income (Refer Notei) ' o 48681 VEIRTURICTRSY
~- | b. :Claims for other taxes (Refer Noteii) - o w0 = S0 190,04 0719858

' ":The Company has coniested the clalms WIth the reievent authoratres and prefefred appea%s wh;ch are
pendsng The Company beheves these dalms are not probabie and would not result in outﬂow Gl

i. The Company has recewed Order ufs 201/2(}1(A) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 dated 20 February 2020 for
... FY 2017-18 {AY 2018-19) raising demand of ? 486. 81 Iacs on acceunt of alieged non- dedectlon ef taxes on
--._yearenciprowsrons ' ; SR L RS :

. i The Company has various claims from authorities for entry tax, value added tax and sales taxes related to
various states on account of movement of ATM machmes and re%ated equ:pment [ from one state to
another. :

ill. The Company has filed a Statement of Claim against one of its customer claiming ¥ 1,095 lacs - excluding
- interest on account of wrongful withholding/deduction of payment due towards penalties, delay in
"delivery, cash shortage etc. The Customer in turn fited a Statement of Defense and also a counter claim of
approximately ¥ 3,704 lacs against the company. The Company raised objections on the manner in which
the customer filed it's Statement of Defense and Counterclaim. On 11 March 2020, after hearing the
submissions Ld. Arbitrator accepted the company’s objections and directed the customer to re-file
the compifation in chronologicat order. The Customer’s counsel agreed to do filing the compilation by way
of amended defense statement and amended counter claim along with an index by giving serial number by
6 ApnI 2020. On account of the COVID 19 outbreak and the ldckddwn in India, the customer had sought
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Notes formmg part of the fmancnal statements i
for the year ended 31 March 2020 Pe 3

g _' tl. "_"Commitments $

'Capitaicommit_mé'nts_

_' Estimated amount of contracts remamsﬂg (net of advances) to be executed on capltal account not prowded N
_ for?592 9: tacs {2019 927, 7G|acs) ' B SR

34 Dtsciosure reqmred under Sectson 22 of the M:cro, Smali and Med;um Enterprtses Deve&cpment Act 2006 A

(?’m Iacs)
Dn o Asat T U Asat
31 March 2020 .31 March 2019,

1 a. Prmcspai amount remaining unpaid to any supplzer asattheend .

_ of the accounting year o 2848 '."'424.76
b. Interest due thereon remaining unpald to any supplier as at the R
" end of the accounting year 2.16 R XY

¢.  The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the ~  "2,070.33 .~ 5254.85
payment made 1o the supplier beyond the appomted day ' ' B PO T
{includes interest 2020: T Nit, 2019 ¥ Nit} o

d.  The amount of interest due and payable for the year e 2.6 T A7

e. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the L
end of the accounting year ' 2.6 Lo 487

f.  The amount of further interest due and payable even in the T
succeeding year, untif such date when the lnterest s dues as S -
above are actually paid T ' O

| & Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - o 30.65 - 429.43

: Dues to Mlcro and Sma%] Enterpnses have been determmed fo the extent such parties have been adent:ﬁed on the
basis of information collected by the Management This has been relied upon by the auditors.. .~ " .

35. Fmancnal Enstruments

. The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recogmtxon the basis of measurement and the basis S
on which income and expense are recognised, in respect of each class of fznancnaf asset, f:nanuai ilabllity arrd equéty R
instrument are dxsclosed in note 2(q} to the fmancnal statements. - S

_ -F:nancsai assets and hablimes

The carrymg value of flnanaas instruments by categories as at 31 March 2020 is as follows

{€in lacs)

Derivatives Amortised  Total carrying

instrument cost " value ]
Financial Assets: .
Other financial assets - 3,318.75 3,318.75
Trade receivables - 2,573.41 2,573.41
Cash and Cash equivalents - 35,465.54 35,465.54
Other bank balances - 17.00 17.00
Total ‘ - 41,374.70 41,374.70
Financials Liabilities:
Right of Use Liability - 12,410.15 12,410.15
Borrowings - 32,006.25 32,006.25
Other financial liabilities 0.03 852.77 852.80
Trade payables : - 10,693.35 10,693.35

0.03 55,962.52 55,962.55
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. "-Notes formlng part of the fmanc:al statements
i ERNORERS for the vear ended 31 March 2020 - e

' The ca{rymg value of fmanua! znstruments by categorles as at 31 March 2019 is as follows i i ;.:_ SR
S ' “®inlaes)

Derivatives . Amortised Total carrymg ]

R RETNE Cinstrument 0 cost : vaiue =
Financial Assets; L ‘ AN S e
Other financial assets .= 0 0o T T e ] 860G '_'-1_,8_69.15
Trade receivables . . N TR T G WD e 408500 ¢ 4,035.01

o] Cashand Cash equivalents .00 000 o T T 82 062,74 __Z_":.".-52,092.74
: Otherbankbalances L I R A R - 1700 17.00

fTetal L oo Sl 58,013.90 . 58,013.90

] Fin_anciaisliabiii_tie_s: o S : C SRR TS
Borrowings .- [ T Th S R - 4547814 .. 45,478.14

Other financial liabilities -~ : o001 t1,32854 ¢ - 1,328.5%
Trade payables - _ - '12,723.40 12,723.40
| Total . - : : 001 59,530.08 - *.’59,530.99 |

" Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans and trade payables as at 31 March 2020
and 31 March 2019 approximate the fair value because of their short-term nature, Difference between carrying
amounts and fair vaiues of other financial assets, other financial liab#livies and borrowings subsequentiy measured
at amortzsed cost is not mgnnscant in each of the years presented : Lo

Fair value hie_rarchy .

o The fair va%z;e hierarchy is based on mputc to vatuation techmques that are used to measure falr vaiue that are. .
. either observab e or unobser\.able and consist of fcn lowing | three ievels : '

- level 1: Inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in ac:ive markets for identical assets or [Eabilities. LA

' Levei 2; Inputs are other than c;ueted prlces :ncluded w:thm Levei 1 that are obsefvable for the asset or llablht\j, i
either dlrectiy {i.e. as pnces) or mdlrectly (i.e. derwed from pnces) : . Sl

. Level 3: Inputs are not based on obsewable market data {unobservable mputs) Fair vaéues are determmed in o
whole or in part using a valuatzon model based on assumptions that are neither, supported by prices from - -0
:}bservable current market transactlons in the same instrument nor are they based on ava:table market data S

The mvestments tncleded in ievel 2 of falr va[ue hnerarchy have been valued usmg quotes avas!abie for snmtlar S
Cassetsand habllmes in the actlve market ' SRS

{i} The foilowing table summarises financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
and financial assets that are not measured at fair value on a recumng basis {but fair value disclosure are

required} .
(Tin Iacs}
Financial assets/liabilities _ : Fair value as at : . Fair value
' ' hierarchy
31March2020 3iMarch2019 . - -
Financial Liabilities
Foreign exchange forward contracts 0.03 0.01 Levei 2
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Notes formlng part of the f;nancnal statements -
for the. year ended 31 March 2020 i : :

36 Fmanual rrsk management objectlves and pOfiCiES B

' .The Company s pnnc;pal fmancral habnhtres, other than cfenvatlves, compnse ioans and barmwmgs, and trade and .
pther.payables, The main parpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to
support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other recezvab es, current
mvestmeets and cash and ¢ ash eqe:vaients that derive dlrectlv frnm 1ts operatsons : :

_' The Company is exposed to market risk, credut nsk and hqeidny r;sk The Company s semor management oversees ..
_ the management of these nsks S

s _'The Compaﬂy 5 senior manegement ensures that ﬂnanczal nsk activities are governed bv appmprrate pcnues and
: procederes and that financial risks are Jdentefaed measured and managed in accordance with the company's
policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist

‘teams that have the appropriate skilis, experience and supervision. It is the company’s poticy that no trading in
denvatsves for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Semor Management rewews ancE agrees pohmes for ‘
menagmg each of these risks, wn;e:h are summansed below ' : :

a. Mar_ket risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument wifl fluctuate because

of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and

other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
include Eeans and borrowings, deposits, F_VTPL énvestments and derivative financial insteuments.

The sensitivity ana%ys:s in the followmg sectmns relate to the posmon as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March o

2019

The anafysis ekcludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and
- 0ther .post- retirement obhgatlons, prov;ssons and tne non-ﬂnancral assets and flablhties of foresgn

--_operatsons : : = S

' 'The fo%lowmg assumptmns have been made in caiculating the sensntlwty ana!ysns E

--The sensst!vrty of the relevant pmﬁt or iess item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market

nsks ThlS is based on the fmanc:al assets anci ﬁnancxai E|ab1|rtres held at 31 Mafch 2020 and 31 March 2019 i
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" Notes formmg part of the fman_c_lal statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 : ' -

b

TATA Communlcations Payment Solutlons L;mlted

. Credtt rlsk is the rrsk that counterparty wnH not meet its obilgatrens under a fnnancral mstrum'ent or customer :

Credst nsk

o contract, leading to a financial loss, The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities 70

mstrtutrons, forezgn exchange Zransactiors and other fsnarzcral mstrements L

' En determlnmg the aflowaﬂces for doubtful trade recewabfes the Cemparw has used a szmplrf;ed approach SRR
Sy computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on & provision matrix. The - i
Pprovision matrix takes into account historical credit loss. experience and is adjusted for forward Iookmg TR
~information. The expected credlt loss atlowance is based on the agesng of the recewables as ment;oned_ R
. .below o . R S

{primarily trade receivables) and from its fmancxng activities, mciedmg deposrts wrth hanks ané fmanual R
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(?'m r'GCS}
T R S _ Aset " As at
Ageing of r ecenvabies.ngt.qf proyisions - T March 2020 .1'31 Mareh 2019
Within credrt pened 74740 1, 733 26_ '
190 days . 968.97 .0 71817
91-180 days . - 24233 . 697.67
181-360 days 158.85 © 591.30
More than 360 days . - 454,86 294.61
R Total 257341 403501 |
.~ Movement in the expected credit loss allowance P
N : : R ' _ (é’m .’c:cs}
Year'ended' ' Year ended
31 March 2020 - 31 March 2019
.'.Baiance at begmﬂtng oftheyear = . . . : '2 454 73 1 9___62_.5_8
Movement -in expected ‘credit foss eliowance on trade 142 30 0 5_4_2.3_4
recesvables calculated at Jlfeteme expected credrt iosses (net) RIS
Less: Bad debts S : : - (50 19) o
"Barance at the end ofthevear ' 2,507.03 245493 |




Notes formlng part of the fmancnal statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 :

' "'c. i.lquuitty ﬂsk

37

TATA Communlcations Payment Solutlons Ltmlted

"'The Company monltors fts rlsk of a shortage of funds using a hquudlty planmng tool

"The Company’s objectlve isto mamtam a balance between contmusty of fundlng and flexlb___t through the _' ; .

[ use of bank overcirafts :

k qudity nsk is ciefmed as the rlsk that the Company w:li oot be able to settie or meet its obhgat;ons on t:me _
orata reasonable price. The Company s corporate treasury department is respons:ble for liquidity, fendmg_ g

as well as settlement management In addztnon processes arad poi:cues related to sech r:sks are. overseen by S

semor management

5 The table below summarizes the maturlty proﬂie of the Company 5 ﬂnanmal Etablhttes based on contractual_

'payments
: (v?‘f‘n facs)
JAsat oo : On . 0tol2 . 1te5. >5Syears . Total
| 31 March2020 . ' demand months - 'years N L
: Trade and otherpayabies S 1,44453 1 9,24882 _'—' el 10,693.35 |
Right-of—usehab_ilitie_s U e 419082 0677124 0 1,44808 12,410.14
-1 Other Financials Liabilities - . 624.86 . = 22794 e » o 852.80
Current borrowings 206.25 31,800.00 - - 32,006.25
RN : (?’mlacs}
ol Asat o S e o s 01012 1to5 . >5years .- Total
31 March 2019 F RPN -demand _.-mcnths : years S
P Trade and other payab[es ; L2, 201 17' N 10 522 23 (R S 1_2,723.40__.
s Othe{F_inangéaEs abilies 3_33.53 - 435 02 - 11,3285
lcurrentborrowings 2247814 2300000 - - asarsaa]

The Company has mcurreé a loss of ? 1(‘.} 604 43 Iakhs dunng the year (2019 ? 12,516.52 Iakhs} has accumuiated o

losses of ¥ 133,749.51 lakhs (2019: T 121,923.81) and has a negative working capital of ¥7,611.25 lakhs (including

_' - right-of-use liabilities of T 4,190.82 lakhs) {2019: negative working capital of T 2,106.81 lakhs) as at the year end.
- The Company has generated positive EBITDA during the year and has balance with banks of T 5,626.22 lakhs

38.

available for use. Further, the Company has unutilised sanctioned loan facilities and is confident of continuing to
generate positive cash flows in the future, which would enable it to meet its operational and capital requirement,

“as and when it falis due. Accordingly, these financial statements are prepared on going concern basis.

The outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-13) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and
slowdown of economic activity. The Company has considered internal and external information while finalizing
various estimates in relation to its financial statement upto the date of approval of the financial statements by the
Board of Directors and has not identified any material impact on the carrying value of assets, iiabilities or
provisions. However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated
with its nature and duration. The Company is monitoring the situation closely and shall take actions as appropnate _

based on any material changes to future economic conditions.
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TATA Commumcatlons Payment Solatlons Lgmited

for the year ended 31 March 2020

39 Evemsafter reportmg perlod Lo

There areno subsequent events betweea the year ended 31 Mar::h 2020 and SIgmng of ffnanaal statements as . s S

Notes formmg part of the fmanc_:_lal ;tatements

B on 09 June 2620 whsch have matenal Jmpact on the flnanuais of the Company

~.40. Appraval e&f %narwua!stetements L

The fsnaﬂc:al statements were approved for issue by the Board of Dnrectors on (}9 3une 2020

In terms of our report attached
Far S.R. Bzatliboi & Associates E.LP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

L .i.-iormuz Master
Partner :
"~ Membership Number 11(}797 ¥

Place: Mumbai
Date: 09 June 2020

‘For and on behalf of Board of Directors S

“Chief Executive Officer -

. Aadesh Goyal F T
Director

Sanjeev Patel &7

Ridhi Sood
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 09 June 2020
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12th Floor, _The Ruby
S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP 22 Sarpan Sans! i
Chartered Accountants Mumbai - 400 028, India

Tel: +81 22 6812 8000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Tata Communications Collaboration Services Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Tata Communications
Collaboration Services Private Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at
March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code
of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial
statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s and the Management report, but does not
include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Director's and
Management report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such other
information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, g1 imited Liabjji riner: EW identity No. AAB-4295
Regd. Office : 22, cﬁ@g@ m Fi Ikata-700 016
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Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in- accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: i

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act based on our
audit, we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;
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(9) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2020;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 26 to the Ind AS financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

4

per Hormuz Master

Partner

Membership Number: 110797
UDIN: 20110797AAAAAZ2234
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 13, 2020
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements of our Report of even date
Re: Tata Communications Collaboration Services Private Limited (“the Company")

O]

(i)

Giii)

(iv)

)

(i)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified by the management during the previous year in
accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years, which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(iXc) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act, for the products/services of the
Company.

(@) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including income-tax, service tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory
dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
sales tax, value added tax, duty of custom and duty of excise are not applicable to the
Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, value added tax, goods and service tax,
cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, sales tax, value added tax, duty of custom and duty of excise
are not applicable to the Company. ‘
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(viii)

(ix)

169

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(c) According to the records of the Company, the outstanding dues of income-tax on account
of any dispute are as below:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where
Statute Dues (Rs Lakhs) | amount relates disputes pending
AY
The Income tax | Income Tax 119.92 2018-19 The Commissioner
Act, 1961 - TDS of Income Tax
(Appeals), Mumbai

The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance, duty of custom and duty of excise
are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has no
dues to banks, financial institutions or debenture holders, hence, reporting under clause (viii) is
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term
loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the
officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the company and hence
reporting under clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with 188 of Act where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards. The provisions of sec 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence,
reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and, not
commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not

entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred
toin section 192 of Act,
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Vo
7
per Hormuz Master
Partner

Membership Number: 110797
Place of Signature: Mumbai
UDIN: 20110797AAAAAZ2234
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 13, 2020
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF TATA COMMUNICATIONS COLLABORATION SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tata Communications
Collaboration Services Private Limited (the ‘Company’) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safequarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards on
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting inciuded obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessedrisk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

o

/
per Hormuz Master
Partner
Membership Number: 110797
UDIN: 20110797AAAAAZ2234
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 13, 2020
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2020 ﬂ

. Asat “Asat i
“31-Mar-20 ] 7 31-Mar-18 "

Note No. |

1} UASSETS o R
EoR 1__Non-currentassets T

1 (a) Property, plant and equipment U : - - 3 Coess2] .:'754-4.3”
] ) Other Intangible assets = 4 . 2515) o0 3148
(c) Deferred taxassets (net) . ' 3 R o '_ | L5 _ _' L 77.03) ' ) 1._65..08

(d) Advance tax fret) . - N R i e9a 76 HE e ey
-Total non-current assets .=« . : SO T R e g a6 |

{ 2 -Current assets
{z} Financial assets
" i} Investments
“{it) Trade receivables

9,700.93] . .0 8,604.77,
7,219.56. . 4,203.64
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 06391 8838
{iv} Other financial assets R e D 204y
Other assets TR B Yo 10 ' 1,498.47 965.08
" Total current as